TWSE : 3231

C
E
3

10N

Wistron Corporat

2017 Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting

Meeting Agenda




DISCLAIMER

THIS IS A TRANSLATION OF THE AGENDA FOR THE 2017 ANNUAL
SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING (THE “AGENDA”) OF WISTRON CORPORATION (THE
“COMPANY”). THIS TRANSLATION IS INTENDED FOR REFERENCE ONLY AND
NOTHING ELSE, THE COMPANY HEREBY DISCLAIMS ANY AND ALL
LIABILITIES WHATSOEVER FOR THE TRANSLATION. THE CHINESE TEXT OF
THE AGENDA SHALL GOVERN ANY AND ALL MATTERS RELATED TO THE
INTERPRETATION OF THE SUBJECT MATTER STATED HEREIN.
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Article 1

Article 2

Article 3

Article 4

Article 5

Article 6

Article 7

Wistron Corporation

Rules and Procedures of Shareholders’ Meeting

The Shareholders’ Meeting (the “Meeting”) of Wistron Corporation (“Wistron™)
shall be conducted in accordance with these Rules and Procedures.

The Company shall be set forth in the meeting notice the shareholder sign-in
time, location of the meeting and other precautions.

The shareholder sign-in time should be at least thirty minutes prior to the start of
the meeting; the reception post should be clearly marked and adequately
qualified personnel sent to handle the sign-in.

Shareholders attending the Meeting shall sign in. The sign-in procedure is
performed by submitting an attendance card. The number of shares represented
by attending shareholders shall be calculated in accordance with the attendance
card submitted by shareholders, plus the shares voted in writing or
electronically.

Shareholders or their proxies (hereinafter referred to as “shareholders™) with an
attendance card shall be allowed to attend the Meeting; registered proxy
solicitors shall also bring identification documents for verification.

The presence of shareholders at the Meeting and their voting at the Meeting
shall be calculated in accordance with the number of shares.

The Meeting shall be held at the domicile of Wistron or at any other appropriate
place that is convenient for the presence of shareholders. The time to start the
Meeting shall not be earlier than 9:00 a.m. or later than 3:00 p.m.

If the Meeting is called by the Board of Directors (“BOD”), the Board’s
Chairman shall preside at the Meeting. In case the Chairman is on leave of
absence, or cannot exercise his powers and authority, the Vice Chairman shall
act in his place. If there is no Vice Chairman, or the Vice Chairman is also on
leave of absence, or cannot exercise his powers and authority, the Chairman
shall designate a director to act in his place. If the Chairman does not designate
a director, the directors shall elect one from among themselves to act in lieu of
the Chairman. The director acting as Chairman of the Meeting shall have held
office for more than six months and understand the financial and business
conditions of the Company, likewise if the acting Chairman is a representative
of a juristic person. If the Meeting is called by any person other than the BOD,
who has the right to call the Meeting, said person shall preside at that Meeting.

Wistron may appoint designated counsel, CPA or other related persons to attend
the Meeting.

The Company shall record the proceedings of the Meeting entirely in audio or
video from the shareholders’ sign-in through the meeting discussions and the
vote counting process; this recording shall be continuous and uninterrupted and
the Company shall retain the recording for at least one year. However, if a



Article 8

Article 9

Article 10

Article 11

Article 12

Article 13

shareholder lawsuit has been instituted in accordance with Article 189 of the
Company Act, the proceedings of the meeting shall be preserved by the
Company until the legal proceedings of the lawsuit have been concluded.

The Chairman shall call the Meeting to order at the time scheduled for the
Meeting, provided, however, that if the shareholders present do not represent a
majority of the total number of issued shares (“quorum”), the Chairman may
postpone the Meeting, provided, however, that the postponement of the Meeting
shall be limited to two times, and the total time of the overall postponement
shall not exceed one hour. If the Meeting has been postponed twice, but the
shareholders present still do not represent a quorum, a tentative resolution may
be adopted by shareholders representing one-third of the total amount of issued
shares, in accordance with Paragraph 1 of Article 175 of the Company Act.
Before the close of the Meeting, if the shareholders present represent a quorum,
the Chairman may present the tentative resolution so adopted to the Meeting for
resolution in accordance with the provisions of Article 174 of the Company Act.

If the Meeting is convened by the BOD, the agenda of the Meeting shall be set
by the BOD. Unless otherwise resolved at the Meeting, the Meeting shall
proceed in accordance with the agenda. During the Meeting, the Chairman may,
at his/her discretion, set time for intermission. Unless otherwise resolved at the
Meeting, the Chairman may not announce adjournment of the Meeting before
the Meeting is finished. If the Chairman announces the adjournment in violation
of these Rules and Procedures, the shareholders may, by majority of the votes
represented by the shareholder present at the Meeting, designate one person as
the Chairman to continue the Meeting.

A shareholder wishing to speak at the Meeting shall first fill out a slip,
specifying therein the major points of his speech, his serial number as a
shareholder and his name, and the Chairman shall determine his order of giving
a speech. A shareholder who submits his slip for a speech but does not actually
speak shall be considered as not having given a speech. If the contents of his
speech shall be different from those specified on the slip, the contents of his
speech shall prevail. When a shareholder is giving a speech, the other
shareholders shall not interrupt unless they have obtained the prior consent from
the Chairman and the said shareholder, and the Chairman shall prevent others
from interrupting.

A shareholder shall not speak more than two times for one motion, unless he has
obtained the prior consent from the Chairman, and each speech shall not exceed
5 minutes. If a shareholder violates the above provisions or his speech exceeds
the scope of the motion, the Chairman may prevent him from continuing.

Any legal entity designated as proxy by shareholder(s) to be present at the
Meeting may appoint only one representative to attend the Meeting. If a
corporate shareholder designates two or more representatives to attend the
Meeting, only one of the representatives so designated may speak on any one
motion.

After a shareholder has given a speech, the Chairman may respond personally or
designate a relevant person to respond.



Article 14

Article 15

Article 16

Article 17

Article 18

Article 19

Article 20

Article 21

When the Chairman considers that the discussion for a motion has reached the
extent for making a resolution, he may announce discontinuance of the
discussion and submit the motion for resolution.

The persons for supervising the casting of votes and the counting thereof for
resolutions shall be designated by the Chairman, provided, however, that the
person supervising the casting of votes shall be a shareholder. Voting counting
or election ballots shall be conducted in public at the place of the Shareholders’
Meeting. After the completion of the vote count, the voting results shall be
announced on the spot, including the shares voted by Shareholders and recorded
in the meeting minutes.

In addition, in the case of the election of directors and independent directors, the
Company shall announce the election results, including the number of directors
elected and the number of ballots received by each.

Except otherwise specified in the Company Act or the Articles of Incorporation
of the Company, a resolution shall be adopted by a majority of the votes
represented by the shareholders present at the Meeting.

If there is an amendment to or substitute for a discussion item, the Chairman
shall decide the sequence of voting for such discussion item and the amendment
or substitute. If any one of them has been adopted, the others shall be deemed
vetoed and no further voting is necessary. The shareholders who voted in writing
or electronically shall be deemed to have waived his/her/its voting power with
respect to any extemporary motion(s) and/or the amendment(s) to the contents
of the original proposal(s) at the said Shareholders’ Meeting.

The Chairman may direct disciplinary personnel (or security personnel) to
maintain the order of the Meeting. For doing so they shall wear a badge bearing
the words of “disciplinary personnel.”

In case of incident of force majeure, the Chairman may decide to temporarily
suspend the Meeting and announce, depending on the situation, when the
Meeting will be resumed, or may, by resolution of shareholders present at the
Meeting, resume the Meeting within five days without further notice or public
announcement.

Any matter not provided in these Rules and Procedures shall be handled in
accordance with the Company Act and the Article of Incorporation of Wistron.

This Procedure was enacted on June 7, 2002.
The 1st amendment was made on June 21, 2012.
The 2nd amendment was made on June 14, 2013.



Meeting Procedures

(1) Declaration of the Commencement of the Meeting
(2) The Chairman in Position

(3) Opening Remarks by the Chairman

(4) Report Items

(5) Ratification Items and Discussion Items

Note: After discussions on all ratification and discussion items are completed, every item
shall be voted by ballot and tallied separately and simultaneously.

(6) Extemporary Motion

(7) Adjournment



Meeting Agenda

Time: 9:00a.m., June 14, 2017

Venue: Farglory International Convention Center
(4F., No0.99, Section 1, Xintai 5th Rd., Xizhi Dist., New Taipei City, Taiwan,
ROC)

I. Report Items

Report the business of 2016.

Audit Committee’s Review Report.

Report the compensation for employees and directors of 2016.
Report the status of treasury stocks buyback.

Report the amendments to the “Codes of Ethical Conduct”.
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Report the amendments to the “Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice

Principles”.

I1. Ratification Items and Discussion Items

1. Ratification of the Business Report and Financial Statements of 2016.

2. Ratification of the proposal for distribution of 2016 profits.

3. Discussion of the capitalization of part of 2016 profits through issuance of new
shares.

4. Discussion of issuance of new common shares for cash to sponsor issuance of GDR
and/or issuance of new common shares for cash in public offering and/or issuance of
new common shares for cash in private placement and/or issuance of new common
shares for cash to sponsor issuance of GDR in private placement.

5. Discussion of amendments to the “Articles of Incorporation.”

6. Discussion of amendments to the “Procedures of Asset Acquisition and Disposal.”

I11. Extemporary Motions

IV. Adjournment



Report ltems

Business Report of 2016. (Please refer to Appendix 1, pages 18-21)

Audit Committee’s Review Report. (Please refer to Appendix 2, page 38)

Report the compensation for employees and directors of 2016.

Description:

(1) According to Article 16 of the “Articles of Incorporation”:

If the Company has profit as a result of the yearly accounting closing (profit

means the profit before tax, excluding the amounts of employees’ and directors’

compensation), such profit will be distributed in accordance with the following,
once the Company's accumulated losses shall have been covered.

A. No less than five percent (5%) of profit as employees’ compensation. The
Company may distributed in the form of shares or in cash, and the qualification
requirements of employees, including the employees of subsidiaries of the
company meeting certain specific requirements, entitled to receive
compensation shall be determined by the Board of Directors.

B. No more than one percent (1%) of profit as the compensation in cash to the
Directors.

(2) The Company’s 3rd term 8th Compensation Committee Meeting and 2nd Board
Meeting of 2017 resolved the employees’ and directors’ compensation of 2016 in
accordance with the “Articles of Incorporation.”

A. The employees’ compensation was NT$615,439,600, distributed by shares.
B. The directors’ compensation was NT$40,619,020, distributed in cash.

(3) The amount of issued shares of employees’ compensation with NT$10 per share
were 23,490,061 shares, which were calculated based on the closing price,
NT$26.2, prior to the board resolution date. Employees’ compensation of less than
one share, equivalent to NT$2, shall be distributed in cash.

(4) The newly issued shares from the capital increase possess identical obligations and
rights as the original shares. The Board of Directors is authorized to carry out the
matter regarding the setting of the record date for new shares from capital increase.



Report the status of treasury stocks buyback.

As of 04/16/2017
Treasury stocks batch order 1st of 2016
Date of board resolution 2016/05/13

Purpose of buy-back

To transfer to employees

Timeframe of buy-back

2016/05/14~2016/07/13

Price range

NT$16 to NT$26 per share

Class, quantity of shares bought back 24,362,000 shares
Value of shares bought-back NT$533,235,760
Average repurchase price per share NT$21.89
Shares sold/transferred 0 shares
Accumulated number of company shares held 115,175,600 shares
Percentage of total company shares held (%) 4.35%

Report of amendments to the “Codes of Ethical Conduct”

Description:

In order to comply with government rules and regulations, the Company approved the
amendments of “Codes of Ethical Conduct” at the 6th board meeting of 2016. Please
refer to Appendix 3, pages 39-43 for the comparison between the original and the
amendments, and Appendix 4, pages 44-50 for the amended version.

Report of amendments to the “Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice
Principles”

Description:

In order to comply with government rules and regulations, the Company approved the
amendments of “Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Principles” at the 6th
board meeting of 2016. Please refer to Appendix 5, pages 51-57 for the comparison
between the original and the amendments, and Appendix 6, pages 58-63 for the
amended version.



Ratification Items and Discussion Items

ITEM 1: Ratification of the Business Report and Financial Statements of 2016

Proposal: Submission (by the BOD) of the Company’s 2016 business report and
financial statements for ratification.

Details:

Submission for ratification of the Company’s business report and financial statements for
2016 (Appendix 1: including Balance Sheets, Statements of Comprehensive Income,
Statements of Changes in Equity and Statements of Cash Flows), which have all been
adopted by the BOD with resolution and examined by the Audit Committee, and are hereby
submitted for ratification. (Please refer to Appendix 1, pages 18-37.)



ITEM 2: Ratification of the proposal for distribution of 2016 profits

Proposal: Submission (by the BOD) of the proposal for 2016 earnings distribution for

ratification.

Details:

1.

5.

6.

The undistributed surplus at the beginning of the 2016 is NT$11,235,680,958, after
deducting remeasurements of the defined benefit liability of NT$144,903,093 and
decrease in unappropriated earnings resulting from equity-accounted investees of
NT$1,738,675 and changes in ownership interest of subsidiaries of NT$3,018,187, then
adding up share-based payment transaction of NT$2,035,623 and the net income after tax
for 2016 is NT$2,961,100,586 and deducting the legal reverse of NT$296,110,059,
therefore the total amount eligible for distribution earnings is NT$13,753,047,153. The
dividends and bonus proposed to be allocated to the shareholders amount to
NT$3,802,711,267, including NT$760,542,260 in stock dividend (NT$0.3 per share at
par value) and NT$3,042,169,007 in cash dividend (NT$1.2 per share).

After the adoption of the resolution at the Shareholders’ Meeting, the power with respect
to setting the ex-rights and ex-dividend date and other relevant matters is reserved for the
Board of Directors.

With respect to the dividends and bonus to shareholders as earnings, the calculation of
the shareholder’s deductible tax amount proportion shall be made separately.

In the event that, before the ex-rights and ex-dividend date, the proposed earnings
distribution plan is affected due to the revisions to relevant laws or regulations, or upon
the request of the competent authorities, or the change to the Company’s common shares
(i.e. repurchasing the Company’s shares for transfer or cancellation, issuance of new
shares to its employees as a result of their exercise of stock options, unsecured
convertible bonds converting into common shares, capital increase by cash, capital
increase by issuance of GDR, cancellation of part of Employee Restricted Stock Awards
and capitalization of employees’ compensation through issuance of new shares etc.),
which results in changes in shareholder’s allotment of shares or dividend-payout ratio, the
Board of Directors is to be authorized to make necessary adjustments at its full discretion.

Please refer to Appendix 7, page 64 for the Profit Appropriation Statement for 2016.

Submission for ratification.



ITEM 3:  Discussion of the capitalization of part of 2016 profits through issuance of

new shares

Proposal: ~ Submission (by the BOD) for discussion of a resolution that the Company issues

new shares through capitalization of the 2016 earnings.

Details:

1.

For the future development of business, the Company is proposing to set aside
shareholder’s dividends and bonus of NT$760,542,260 from distributable earnings in
2016 to increase the capital by issuing 76,054,226 shares.

Upon the approval for the aforesaid proposal from the competent authority, shareholders’
dividends and bonus of NT$760,542,260, each shareholder will be entitled to receive 30
surplus earning shares per 1,000 shares (tentative calculation) held by such shareholder
based on the name and shares registered in the shareholder roster on the ex-rights date.
Shareholders are advised to consolidate their fractional shares of less than one share to
make up one share by their own means for registration within five days as of the ex-
rights date; otherwise the fractional shares shall be paid in cash (rounding down to the
nearest NT dollar) by the par value and purchased by persons designated by the
Chairman as authorized.

The new issuing shares from the capital increase possess identical obligations and rights
as the original shares.

After the adoption of the Sharcholders’ Meeting, the BOD is authorized to carry out the
matter regarding the setting of the ex-rights date for new shares from capital increase.

In the event that, before the ex-rights date, the capitalization proposal is affected due to
the revisions to relevant laws or regulations, or upon the request of the competent
authorities, or the change to the Company’s common shares (i.e. repurchasing the
Company’s stock shares for transfer or cancellation, issuance of new shares to its
employees as a result of their exercise of stock options, unsecured convertible bonds
converting into common shares, capital increase by cash, capital increase by issuance of
GDR, cancellation of part of Employee Restricted Stock Awards and capitalization of
employees’ compensation through issuance of new shares etc.), which results in changes
in shareholder’s allotment of shares, the Board of Directors is to be authorized to make
necessary adjustments at its full discretion.

Please discuss.
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ITEM 4:

Proposal:

Details:

Discussion of issuance of new common shares for cash to sponsor issuance
of GDR and/or issuance of new common shares for cash in public offering
and/or issuance of new common shares for cash in private placement
and/or issuance of new common shares for cash to sponsor issuance of GDR
in private placement.

Submission (by the BOD) of a proposal to approve the issuance of new
common shares to sponsor issuance of GDR, issuance of new common shares
in public offering, issuance of new common shares in private placement and
issuance of new common shares to sponsor issuance of GDR in private
placement up to 260 million common shares for capital increase in order to
purchase overseas materials, or increase working capital, or repay bank loans
or other needs for its future development and competitiveness enhancement.

1. Fund raising purpose and size:

For the purpose of fulfilling the funding needs of the Company to purchase overseas
materials, or increase working capital, or repay bank loans or other needs for its future
development and competitiveness enhancement, it is proposed to authorize the Board of
Directors to issue up to 260 million common shares, depending on the market conditions
and the Company’s need, to choose appropriate timing and fund raising methods in
accordance with the applicable laws and regulations, according to the following fund
raising method and handling principles.

2. Fund raising methods and handling principles:

(1)1ssuance of new common shares for cash to sponsor issuance of GDR

A

In accordance with the existing provisions of the “Disciplinary Rules for Securities
Underwriters Assisting Issuing Company in the Offering and Issuance of Securities
issued by the Taiwan Securities Association,” the issue price of the new common
shares for cash capital increase for the issuance of GDR may not be lower than the
closing price of the Company’s common shares on the Taiwan Stock Exchange or
90% of average closing price of the common shares of the Company in one, three,
or five business days prior to the pricing date after adjustment for any distribution
of stock and cash dividends or capital reduction. In case of any changes to the
relevant domestic laws, the pricing method shall be adjusted accordingly. In view
of the severe short-term fluctuations in domestic market price, it is proposed to
authorize the Chair to determine the final issue price, within the scope of the said
requirement under the Disciplinary Rules, after negotiation with the lead
underwriter depending on international capital markets, domestic market price and
the overall book building situations, to improve the subscription of international
investors, so the pricing method should be reasonable.

. Upon the limit of 260 million common shares for the issuance of GDR through the

issuance of new common shares by capital increase, the original shareholders’
equity will be diluted by a maximum of 9.81%. The implementation of the
fundraising plan will enhance the Company’s competitiveness and benefit the

11



shareholders; the determination of the issue price of the GDRs will be based on the
fair trading price of common shares formed in the domestic market. EXisting
shareholders may still be able to purchase common stock in domestic stock market
at the price closing to the issue price of GDR without bearing the exchange risks
and liquidity risks, and may take into account their interests.

C. Except for 10% to 15% of new common shares shall be allocated for the
employees’ subscription in accordance with applicable law, it is proposed for the
shareholders meeting to approve that the rights to the remaining 85% to 90% of the
issuance shall be waived by the shareholders and should be offered to the public
under Article 28-1 of Securities and Exchange Act as the underlying shares of
GDR to be sold. It is proposed to authorize the Chairman, depending on the market
needs, to allot the new common shares not subscribed by employees of the
Company as underlying shares of GDR.

(2)1ssuance of new common shares for cash in public offering

It is proposed to authorize the Board of Directors to issue up to 260 million common
shares and the par value of the new common shares to be issued per share is NT$10.
It is also proposed to authorize the Board of Directors to choose either of the
following methods to sell the new shares in the public offering through the
underwriter(s):

A. By book-building

a. Except for 10% to 15% of the new shares must be offered to employees in
accordance with Article 267, Paragraph 1 of the Company Act, the remaining
85% to 90% of the shares will be proposed to the shareholders meeting to
approve that the pre-emptive rights to subscribe to the remaining shares to be
waived by the shareholders in accordance with Article 28-1 of the Securities
and Exchange Act and such remaining shares will be offered to the public via
book building and will comply with “Taiwan Securities Association Rules
Governing Underwriting and Resale of Securities by Securities Firms”. It is
proposed that any new common shares not subscribed by employees of the
Company will be sold to the person(s) designated by the Chairman of the
Company at the issue price.

b. According to the “Self-Disciplinary Rules for Securities Underwriters Assistant
Issuing Company to Subscribe and Issue Marketable Securities”, the issuing
price of new common shares should not be lower than 90% of the simple
arithmetic mean of the share's closing price one, three, or five business days
prior to the pricing date after adjustment for any distribution of stock and cash
dividends or capital reduction. The Board of Directors authorizes the Chairman
to determine the final issue price with the underwriter(s) based on the overall
book building situation and market conditions.

B. By public subscription

a. Except for 10% to 15% of the new shares must be offered to employees in
accordance with Article 267, Paragraph 1 of the Company Act, it is proposed
that 10% of the new shares will be sold to the public through the underwriter(s)
and the remaining 75% to 80% of the shares will be subscribed to by the
existing shareholders of the Company in accordance with their shareholding. It
is proposed that any new common shares not subscribed by employees and
existing shareholders of the Company will be sold to the person(s) designated

12



by the Chairman of the Company at the issue price.

b. According to the “Self-Disciplinary Rules for Securities Underwriters Assistant
Issuing Company to Subscribe and Issue Marketable Securities”, the issuing
price of new common shares should not be lower than 70% of the simple
arithmetic mean of the share's closing price one, three, or five business days
prior to the pricing date after adjustment for any distribution of stock and cash
dividends or capital reduction. The Board of Directors authorized Chairman to
determine the final issue price with the underwriter(s) based on relevant laws,
regulations and market conditions.

(3)Issuance of new common shares for cash in private placement and/or issuance of new
common shares for cash to sponsor issuance of GDR in private placement

A. The basis and rationale to determine the price of private placement:

a. The common stock price per share shall be set by no less than 80% of the
reference price. The reference price is set as the higher of the following two
basis prices:

(i) The simple average closing price of the common shares of the Company for
either the one, three, or five business days before the price determination date,
after adjustment for any distribution of stock dividends, cash dividends or
capital reduction.

(if) The simple average closing price of the common shares of the Company for
the thirty business days before the price determination date, after adjustment
for any distribution of stock dividends, cash dividends, or capital reduction.

b. The pricing date, actual reference price, theoretical price, and actual issuance
price are proposed to be authorized to the Board of Directors to determine
within the range approved by the shareholders meeting, after taking into
consideration the market status, objective conditions, and qualification of
specific parties. Considering that the Securities and Exchange Act has set the
restrictions on transfers of the privately placed securities for three full years,
the price determination above shall be reasonable.

B. The method to determine specific parties:

The strategic investors have the priority to be considered as specific parties for
private placement if they may being qualified for the rules in Article 43-6,
Securities and Exchange Act and other letters from government authorities and
should also have direct or indirect benefit to the Company, and can recognize the
Company’s operating strategy. The company currently has not arranged the
specific parties. It is proposed to authorize the Company’s Board of Directors to
determine the specific parties for private placement.

C. The necessity of private placement:

a. The Company plans to invite strategic investors and strengthen competitiveness
through private placement. Because of the restrictions on transfers for three full
years, it is better to maintain a long-term relationship with strategic partners by
such security issuance of private placement. And also considering the
effectiveness and feasibility to raise capital, the Company proposes to raise
capital through private placement, rather than public offering.

b. The amount of the private placement: up to 260 million common shares

c. The use of proceeds and projected benefits of private placement: The Company
plans to do private placement at one time or several times (no more than 3
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times) based on market conditions and specific parties. The capital raised will
be used to purchase overseas materials, or increase working capital, or repay
bank borrowings or other needs for its future development. The private
placement will expand the scale of operations and invite strategic investors and
will strengthen our competitiveness, upgrade operating efficiency, and
reinforce financial structure, which can benefit shareholders’ equity.

Use of proceeds, schedule and projected benefit:

The Company plans to use the fund raising from capital increase to purchase overseas
materials, or increase working capital, or repay bank borrowings or other needs for its
future development. The fund raising plan will strengthen our competitiveness, upgrade
operating efficiency, and reinforce financial structure, which can benefit shareholders’
equity.

It is proposed to authorize the Board of Directors to determine, proceed or revise the
issuance plan of new common shares to be issued to sponsor the GDR and the new
common shares to be issued in public offering, new common shares in private placement
and new common shares to sponsor issuance of GDR in private placement, including
issue price, shares, terms and conditions, plan items, amount, record date, projected
progresses and benefits, and any other item related to the issuance plan, based on market
conditions. It is also proposed to authorize Board of Directors to revise the issuance plan
based on operation evaluation, environment changes or if receiving instructions from
governmental authorities.

The new common shares to be issued to sponsor issuance of GDR, the new common
shares to be issued in public offering, the new common shares in private placement and
the new common shares to sponsor issuance of GDR in private placement will be issued
in scripless form. Except that the new common shares in private placement and the new
common shares to sponsor issuance of GDR are subject to the selling restrictions within
three years after the delivery date under Article 43-8 of the Securities and Exchange Act,
the new common shares to be issued to sponsor the GDR and the new common shares to
be issued in public offering, new common shares in private placement and new common
shares to sponsor issuance of GDR in private placement will have the same rights and
obligations as the Company’s existing issued and outstanding common shares.

It is proposed to authorize the Chairman or the Chairman's designee, on behalf of the
Company, to handle all matters relating to, and sign all agreements and documents in
connection with, issuance of new common shares to sponsor issuance of GDR and/or
issuance of new common shares in public offering and/or issuance of new common
shares in private placement and/or issuance of new common shares to sponsor issuance
of GDR in private placement.

The Board is authorized to handle all matters which are not addressed herein in
accordance with the applicable laws and regulations.

Please discuss.
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ITEM 5:

Proposal:

Details:

Discussion of amendments to the “Articles of Incorporation”

Submission (by the BOD) of a proposal to amend certain parts of the
Company’s “Articles of Incorporation”.

1. In order to comply with the operational needs of the Company, it is proposed to make
amendments to the “Articles of Incorporation.” Please see below for a comparison table
of the original provisions and amendments.

2. Please discuss.

Comparison between Original and Amendments to
“Articles of Incorporation”

Items Original Version Amendment Version Reason
Article 2| The business items of the The business items of the To comply
Company are set out as follows: | Company are set out as follows: |with the
............ Company’s
(11)R&D, development, design, | (11)R&D, development, design, |operational
production, manufacture, production, manufacture, needs.
testing and sale of In-Vitro testing and sale of In-Vitro
testing equipment / system / testing equipment / system /
modules / platform, modules / platform,
physiological signal Treatment Appliance and
detection medical materials Equipment, Smart Assistive
and medical information Devices, General
transmission system Diagnostic X-ray Imaging
products, semi-finished Device, physiological
products and their signal detection medical
peripherals or components. materials and medical
...... information transmission
system products, semi-
finished products and their
peripherals or components.
Article | ....... | ... Correspondence
19 | The 19" amendment was made | The 19" amendment was made |to the
on June 15, 2016. on June 15, 2016. amendment
The 20" amendment was made | date-

on June 14, 2017.
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ITEM6: Discussion of amendments to the “Procedures of Asset Acquisition and
Disposal”

Proposal: Submission (by the BOD) of a proposal to amend certain parts of the
Company’s “Procedures of Asset Acquisition and Disposal”.

Details:

1. In order to comply with government rules and regulations, it is proposed to make
amendments to the “Procedures of Assets Acquisition and Disposal”. (Please refer to
Appendix 9, pages 73-80 for the comparison between the original and the amendments).

2. Please discuss.
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Voting by Poll

Extemporary Motion

Adjournment
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Appendix 1
Wistron Corporation
Business Report

Last year, while confronting the ongoing declining demand in personal computer related
markets, the overall ICT industry exhibited no significant growth. For Wistron, although the
company was constantly challenged by the tough economic environment and industry
competition, we continued to deliver revenue growth through several efforts like customer
and product portfolio optimization, and operation efficiency improvement. The operating
profit and net profit also increased compared with previous year.

Overall, with the contribution from new invested businesses Wistron’s financial performance
showed gradual and persistent growth in 2016. On behalf of all Wistron employees, we would
like to express our sincere appreciation to our shareholders for your support for Wistron’s
continuous growth.

2016 Financial and Operation Results

In 2016, Wistron’s consolidated revenue reached NT$659.9 billion and consolidated
operating profit was NT$6.012 billion. The consolidated profit before tax reached NT$4.757
billion and profit attributable to Owners of the Company was NT$2.961 billion. Meanwhile,
the earnings per share was NT$ 1.2.

The revenue increased around 6%, while the operating profit and net profit also increased
compared with the previous year. From the operation management point of view, Wistron
continued to enhance operation efficiency through improving material cost management and
production efficiency in 2016. The total manufacturing expense decreased significantly.
The R&D expenses slightly increased for the investments in new businesses and new product
line developments to accelerate innovation and adjustments in our business portfolio in order
to cope with competition and market changes.

In 2016, Wistron’s key growth drivers were server, storage, and VoIP, while other product
lines maintained the same level compared with the previous year. From the customer and
marketing point of view, the smart terminal device and cloud service (e.g. server and storage)
markets continued stable growth compared to the declining demand in the traditional
consumer market (e.g. notebook, tablet and LCD-TV). In the meantime, to cope with the
market trend, Wistron also continued optimizing customer and product portfolios in order to
provide higher value-added and profitable services.
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Last year, Wistron also actively continued the organizational re-structuring and the digital
transformation. In addition to the automation and intelligent implementation on materials and
manufacturing management, we also deployed the digitalization and intelligent
implementation on personnel and R&D project management. Meanwhile, through
organizational transformation to promote the young management talent, we were able to let
management teams inherit and mobilize resources, improve decision-making speed and
accuracy, and expedite corporate transformation.

In addition, we continued publishing the “Wistron Corporate Social Responsibility Report” in
2016. Also in response to the revised “Corporate Social Responsibility Best Practice
Principles” from Taiwan Stock Exchange (TWSE), Wistron passed the amendments to our
“Corporate Social Responsibility Best Practice Principles” at a board meeting in August 2016
stating that corporate governance shall be strengthened to protect the rights and interests of
our stakeholders and that all employees of the Company are required to act in compliance
with these Principles.

2017 Business and Operation Focus

For 2017, our major operation focuses are:

(1) reinvigorate the core businesses for competitiveness (including PC and server). Our
actions will focus on adjusting customer and product portfolios for profit improvement,
building closer customer relationships, strengthening leadership in technology and service
value, and improving operation efficiency in order to achieve leading operational
performance.

(2) scale the new business growth and profitability. Our actions will focus on executing the
current growth opportunities (including LCM and smartphone), building new services and
solution businesses (including handset service, education, and enterprise services), building
new technology verticals (including IPC, 10T, medical, enterprise storage, and automotive
electronics) and creating innovation platforms.

(3) drive digital transformation. Our actions will focus on accelerating digital operation
improvement initiatives (including manufacturing, inventory, and R&D), building Wistron
Industry 4.0 capabilities, building the digitalized system for performance management across
projects, people, operation models, and functions.
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For business and product directions, in response to the growing smart terminal device market
and the stalled growth in consumer markets (e.g. notebook and LCD-TV), Wistron will
accelerate the adjustment of our customer and product portfolios to provide higher
value-added services to our customers. In the meantime, we will continue infusing the
organization with younger management talent and optimizing operation efficiency to enhance
competitiveness and accelerate the pace of transformation.

Outlook for the Future

Looking forward, while the Internet of Things (IoT), smart terminal devices, and the cloud
service markets continue to grow, the global economy is showing uncertainty for recovery
and the traditional IT industry is expected to show slower growth.

As we look into the future, there is little doubt that the digital economy will be exerting
increasing influence on our daily lives and that digital transformation is the key to corporate
survival and the foundation of a whole new business model.

In recent years, we have been devoted to transforming our role into a comprehensive
technology service provider (TSP). For example, with the development of cloud technologies
and through the software integration service combining hardware such as computer,
intelligent devices, and cloud data system, we can provide a technology service platform and
in-time big data information to be the “technology powerhouse” for our customers.

Wistron’s major “corporate beliefs” are customer focus, integrity, innovation, and pursuit of
excellence. In the meantime, with the corporate philosophy of “altruism” we will continually
take concrete actions to pursue corporate sustainability and social responsibility. For
company’s future development strategy to realize our vision of becoming “the technology
powerhouse for better life & environment,” Wistron's role as a technology service provider
(TSP) promotes innovation and digital transformation enabling us to reinvigorate our core
business activities, enhance interaction with our customers, and scale new businesses. This is
how we at Wistron are able to provide consumers high value-added products and services that
are both lifestyle compatible and environmentally conscious.

Regarding employees and our community, we provide a fair, just, and open platform to attract,
develop, and retain top-performing talent and teams. Internally, Wistron offers an
environment that provides individuals continuous growth, learning, and competitive rewards,
both tangible and intangible. Externally, through collaboration with charity groups and
participation in events for social welfare, employees are granted the opportunity to enrich
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their minds, develop their moral character, and achieve a more comprehensive way of
thinking.

Regarding digital transformation, through big data analysis, the Company effectively collates
and applies information to improve the quality and performance of company operations,
thereby creating high investment returns for our shareholders. These profits are subsequently
remunerated to all of Wistron’s stakeholders, including employees, investors, and the
community, forming a positive circulation that constitutes the blueprint for sustainable
development.

We believe this strategy will provide the value that truly benefits our customers and builds
long-term value for our shareholders. On behalf of all Wistron employees, we wish to thank
all our shareholders for their support and confidence.

Chairman:  Simon Lin President: Robert Hwang Controller:  Stone Shih
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors of Wistron Corporation :
Opinion

We have audited the parent-company-only financial statements of Wistron Corporation (“the Company”), which
comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the statements of comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying parent-company-only financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 in accordance with the
Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the “Regulations Governing Auditing and Certification of Financial
Statements by Certified Public Accountants” and the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of
China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Certified Public Accountants Code of Professional Ethics in Republic of China (“the Code™), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

1. Provision of sales return and allowance

Please refer to Note 4(p) “Revenue”, Note 5(a) “Significant accounting assumptions and judgments, and
major sources of estimation uncertainty”, and Note 6(1) “provision of sales return and allowance™ of the
consolidated financial statements.

Description of key audit matter

Provision of sales return and allowance is one of the key judgmental areas for our audit, particularly in
respect of the estimates made for rebates, chargebacks and returns under contractual requirements which are
deducted before arriving at revenue.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our principal audit procedures included: testing the Company’s controls surrounding the revenue
recognition, key manual and systems-based controls in the sales transaction cycle, including reconciliations
between sales systems and the general ledger; assessing whether appropriate policies are applied through
comparison with accounting standards; Our audit work in respect of the accrual for rebates and returns
involved testing key controls, including the Company’s review on claims and credits. In addition, we
considered the accuracy of the accrual calculation, collaborated inputs, key assumptions, and the historical
accuracy of the accrual.

2. Inventory valuation

Please refer to Note 4(h) “Inventories”, Note 5(b) “Significant accounting assumptions and judgments, and
major sources of estimation uncertainty”, and Note 6(d) “Inventories” of the consolidated financial
statements.

Description of key andit matter

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. With the rapid development of technology.
the advance of new electronic products may significantly change consumer demands, which leads to product
obsolescence that may result in the cost of inventory to be higher than the net realizable value.
Consequently, the valuation of inventories has been identified as another key audit matter.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

In relation to the key audit matter above, our audit procedures include selecting samples to examine their net
realizable values to verify the accuracy of inventory aging report; evaluating the reasonableness of the
Company's inventory valuation policy and the management's assumption used when measuring allowance for
inventory valuation and obsolescence losses; performing a retrospective review of the Company's historical
accuracy of judgments with reference to inventory valuation and comparing them with the current year's
calculation to evaluate the appropriateness of the estimation and assumption used for inventory valuation;
and evaluating the adequacy of the Company's disclosure for inventories.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the parent-company-only financial
statements in accordance with Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of parent-
company-only financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the parent-company-only financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the parent-company-only financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these parent-company-only financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the parent-company-only financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company'’s internal control.

(98]

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
parent-company-only financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the parent-company-only financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the investment in
other entities accounted for using the equity method to express an opinion on this parent-company-only
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We

remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the parent-company-only financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report are Ya-Ling Chen and Li-Li
Lu.

KPM&G

KPMG

Taipei, Taiwan (Republic of China)
March 20, 2017

Notes to Readers

The accompanying financial statements are intended only to present the statement of financial position. financial performance and its cash
flows in accordance with the accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and not those of any other
jurisdictions. The standards. procedures and practices Lo audit such financial statements are those generally accepted and applied in (he

.chublic of China.
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WISTRON CORPORATION
Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

(expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars , except for earnings per common share)

2016 2015
Amount Y Amount Y%
Net revenues (notes 6(r) and 7) $ 613214569 100 585,799,180 100
Cost of sales (notes 6(d)(g)(h)(k)(I)(m)(0)(p)(s), 7 and 12) 589.217.765 96 564,951,067 _ 96
Gross profit 23996804 _ 4 20.848.113 _ 4
Realized (unrealized) inter-company profits 220,777 - (212,233) -
Less: Realized gross profit 24217581 _ 4 20.635.880 _ 4
Operating expenses (notes 6(c)(g)(h)(I)(m)(o)(p)(s), 7 and 12):
Selling 3,659,548 1 4,617,196 |
Administrative 2,213,758 - 2,161,200 |
Research and development 11.999.847 2 12,053.692 _ 2
Total operating expenses 17.873.153 3 18.832.088 4
Operating income 6344428 | 1.803.792 _ -
Non-operating income and expenses:
Other income (notes 6(r) and 7) 264,103 246,632 -
Other gains and losses (note 6(r)) (195,318) 708,264 -
Finance costs (note 6(r)) (1,123,119) - (1,168,720) -
Recognized share of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
accounted for equity method (note 6(e)) (1.843.632) _ (1) 370769 -
Total non-operating income and expenses (2.897.966) _ (1) 156,945 _ -
Profit before tax 3,446,462 - 1,960,737 -
Less: income tax expenses (note 6(n)) 485361 - 626,643 -
Net profit 2961.101 _ - 1,334,094 _ -
Other comprehensive income (note 6(m)(n)(0)):
Components of other comprehensive income that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss:
Remeasurements of the defined benefit liability (171,708) (103,890) -
Share of other comprehensive income of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures (2,385) - (13,901) -
Income tax related to components of other comprehensive
income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (29.190) _ - (17.661) _ -
(144.903) _ - (100.130) _ -
Components of other comprehensive income that will be
reclassified to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of financial statemetns (1,585,768) 2,615,293 -
Unrealized gains (losses) on valuation of available-for-sale
financial assets (32,278) 423767 -
Share of other comprehensive income of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures (679,993) - (356,118) -
Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income
that will be reclassified to profit or loss (13.617) _ - (17.014) _ -
(2.284.422) _ - 2699956 _ -
Other comprehensive income, net of tax (2.429.325) _ - 2.599.826 _ -
Total comprehensive income $ 531,776 - 3,933,920
Earnings per share (in dollars), after tax (note 6(q)): o T
Basic earnings per share s 1.20 0.53
Diluted earnings per share 3 1.17 0.51

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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WISTRON CORPORATION
Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

2016 2015

Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit before tax S 3,446,462 1,960,737
Adjustments:
Adjustments to reconcile profit:

Depreciation expense 1,627,693 1,879,383
Amortization expense 350,495 357,827
Net loss (profit) on financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 578,303 (548,834)
Interest expense 1,123,119 1,168,720
Interest income (113,057) (78,403)
Dividend income (106,123) (124,806)
Compensation cost arising from shares based payments 170,582 (80,881)
Recognized share associates and joint ventures accounted for equity method 1,843,632 (370,769)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net 22.811) (5,816)
Property, plant and equipment reclassified as expenses 206 16
Gain on disposal of intangible assets (12,191) (60,562)
Loss on disposal of investments 35,038 1,156
Loss on repurchase of convertible bonds < 6,827
Exchange difference of bounds payable - (5,134)
Unrealized (realized) sales profits (220,777) 212,233
Impairment loss on assets 223,530 45,459
Other investments loss 35,653 385,156
5,513,292 2,781,572

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Changes in operating assets

Decrease (increase) in notes and accounts receivable 2,359,867 (7,391,119)
Increase in accounts receivable-related parties (26,356,768) (15,307,086)
Decrease in other receivable-related parties 215,781 130,408
Decrease (increase) in inventories (1,663,376) 2,031,806
Increase in other assets-current (1,855,878) (397.597)
Total changes in operating assets (27,300,374) (20,933.588)
Changes in operating liabilities
Increase (decrease) in notes and accounts payable 10,185,790 (4,554,762)
Increase in accounts payable to related parties 54,289,910 54,953,339
Increase (decrease) in other payable to related parties (1,693,836) 436,457
Increase in provisions 74,669 283,607
Increase in other current liabilities 5,384,131 2,529,831
Increase (decrease) in other non-current liabilities (231,395) 343,908
Total changes in operating liabilities 68.009.269 53,992,380
Net changes in operating assets and liabilities 40,708,895 33,058,792
Total changes in operating assets and liabilities 46,222,187 35,840,364
Cash generated from operating activities 49,668,649 37,801,101
Interest received 107,847 78,453
Dividends received 471,718 378,838
Interest paid (1,126,275) (1,179,035)
Income taxes paid (1.550.295) (1,750,272)
Net cash generated from operating activities 47,571,644 35,329,085
Cash flows used in investing activities:
Decrease in other receivables-related parties 667,192 47,959
Increase in available-for-sale financial assets (485,534) (226,633)
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale financial assets 385,021 171,628
Increase in financial assets at cost-non-current (302,571) (375,319)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at cost-non-current - 22,532
Proceeds from return of financial assets at cost 52,615 57,161
Increase in equity-accounted investees (2,925,132) (975,680)
Proceeds from disposal of equity-accounted investees 266,619 -
Proceeds from capital reduction of equity-accounted investees 332,855 -
Increase in property, plant and equipment (531,748) (600,203)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 31,611 158,589
Increase in intangible assets (188,417) (317,193)
Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets 12,191 152,815
Increase in other assets-non-current (359.431) (1.058.920)
Net cash flows used in investing activities (3,044.729) (2,943.264)
Cash flows used in financing activities:
Increase of short-term borrowings 455,949,184 374,197,900
Repayment on of short-term borrowings (481,733,496) (376,868,273)
Repurchase of convertible bounds E (605,030)
Increase in long-term borrowings 6,348,022 22,554,167
Repayments on long-term borrowings (7,557,347) (28,749,262)
Decrease in deposits received (186,501) (309,509)
Cash dividends to shareholders (2,903,716) (2,961,921)
Repurchase of treasury stock (533,236) (2,721,183)
Treasury stock transferred to employees 669,644 25,001
Net cash flows used in financing activities (29.947.446) (15.438,110)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 14,579,469 16,947,711
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 23,837.373 6.889.662
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year S 38,416,842 23,837,373

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 29
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors of Wistron Corporation:
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wistron Corporation and its subsidiaries(“the
Group™), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2016
and 2015, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, and its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with the Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and with the International Financial
Reporting Standards (*IFRSs”), International Accounting Standards (“[ASs”), interpretation as well as related
guidance endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Certification of Financial
Statements by Certified Public Accountants and the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of
China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors® Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Certified Public Accountants Code of Professional Ethics in Republic of China (“the
Code™), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

1. Provision of sales return and allowance

Please refer to Note 4(p) “Revenue”, Note 5(a) “Significant accounting assumptions and judgments, and
major sources of estimation uncertainty”, and Note 6(I) “provision of sales return and allowance” of the
consolidated financial statements.

Description of key audit matter

Provision of sales return and allowance is one of the key judgmental areas for our audit, particularly in
respect of the estimates made for rebates, chargebacks and returns under contractual requirements which are
deducted before arriving at revenue.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our principal audit procedures included: testing the Group’s controls surrounding the revenue recognition,
key manual and systems-based controls in the sales transaction cycle, including reconciliations between sales
systems and the general ledger; assessing whether appropriate policies are applied through comparison with
accounting standards; Our audit work in respect of the accrual for rebates and returns involved testing key
controls, including the Group’s review on claims and credits. In addition, we considered the accuracy of the
accrual calculation, collaborated inputs, key assumptions, and historical accuracy of the accrual.

. Inventory valuation

Please refer to Note 4(h) “Inventories”, Note 5(b) “Significant accounting assumptions and judgments, and
major sources of estimation uncertainty”, and Note 6(d) “Inventories” of the consolidated financial

statements.
Description of key audit matter

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizablevalue. With the rapid development of technology,
the advance of new electronic products may significantly change consumer demands, which leads to product
obsolescence that may result in the cost of inventory to be higher than the net realizable value.
Consequently, the valuation of inventories has been identified as another key audit matter.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

In relation to the key audit matter above. our audit procedures include selecting samples to examine their net
realizable values to verify the accuracy of inventory aging report; evaluating the reasonableness of the
Company's inventory valuation policy and the management's assumption used when measuring allowance for
inventory valuation and obsolescence losses; performing a retrospective review of the Company's historical
accuracy of judfments with reference to inventory valuation and comparing them with the current year's
calculation to evaluate the appropriateness of the estimation and assumption used for inventory valuation;
and evaluating the adequacy of the Company's disclosure for inventories.

. Recognition of the Deferred Tax Assets

Please refer to Note 4(s) “Income Taxes” and Note 6(0) “Income Taxes™ of the consolidated financial
statements.

Description of key audit matter

The recognition of deferred tax assets for the related unused tax losses and deductible temporary differences;
and the recognition and measurement of the above-mentioned deferred tax assets are based on the
management‘s estimates on the possible future taxable profits and the availability that the related deferred
tax assets will be realized. This is one of the key areas our audit focused on.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our principal audit procedures included: reviewing the process on the managements assessment on the
recognition and measurement of the deferred tax assets: comparing consistency of the management’s
estimates for assumptions used in the future financial budget with future operation projection, and evaluating
whether appropriate assumptions above are applied; And assessing the recognition and measurement of the
deferred tax assets. In addition, we also considered the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures of its deferred
tax assets policy and other related disclosures.
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Other Matter

Wistron Corporation has prepared its parent-company-only financial statements as of and for the years ended
December 31,2016 and 2015, on which we have issued an unqualified opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and IFRSs,
IASs, interpretation as well as related guidance endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the
Republic of China, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

I. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures. and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that

we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report are Ya-Ling Chen and Li-Li
Lu.

KPMG

KPMG

Taipei, Taiwan (Republic of China)
March 20, 2017

Notes to Readers

The accompanying consolidated financial stalements are intended only to present the consolidated statement of financial position,
financial performance and its cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of
China and not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such consolidated financial statements are

those generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China.
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WISTRON CORPORATION AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

(expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars , except for earnings per common share)

2016 2015
Amount Yo Amount Yo
4100 Net revenues (notes 6(1)(s) and 7) 659,908,231 100 623,273,988 100
5000 Cost of sales (notes 6(d)(h)(i)(I)(m)(n)(q)(t), 7 and 12) 628.263.714 95 _593.857.752 95
5900 Gross profit 31.644.517 S 29.416.236 5
Operating expenses (notes 6(c)(h)(i)(m)(n)(q)(t), 7 and 12):
6100 Selling 8,883,365 1 10,897,273 2
6200 Administrative 2,954,205 | 2,746,336 -
6300 Research and development 13.794.877 2 13,382,922 2
Total operating expenses 25.632.447 4 27.026.531 4
Operating income 6.012.070 1 2.389.705 1
Non-operating income and expenses:
7010 Other income (notes 6(m)(s) and 7) 1,167,000 - 1,816,467
7020 Other gains and losses (note 6(s)) (369.899) - (174,198)
7050 Finance costs (note 6(s)) (1,981,651) - (1,862.406)
7060 Recognized share of associates and joint ventures accounted for equity method (note 6(e)) (70.420) - 200,797 -
(1,254.970) _ - (19.340) -
7900 Profit before tax 4,757,100 1 2,370,365 1
7950 Less: income tax expense (note 6(0)) 1.764.096 - 1.099.470 -
8200 Net profit 2,993,004 1 1.270.895 1
Other comprehensive income (notes 6(e)(n)(0)(p)):
8310 Components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
8311 Remeasurements of the defined benefit liability (170,254) - (102911) -
8320 Share of other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures accounted for equity
method (3,654) - (14977) -
8349 Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss (29.005) - (17.758) -
(144.903) _ - (100.130) _ -
8360 Components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to profit or loss:
8361 Exchange differences on translation of financial statements (2,062.812) (1) 2338456
8362 Unrealized gains (losses) on valuation of available-for-sale financial assets (103,294) - 423613 -
8370 Share of other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures accounted for equity
method (150,702) - (77,101) -
8399 Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to
profit or loss (30.725) - (17.014) -
(2.286.083) __ (1) 2701982 -
Other comprehensive income, net of tax (2.430.986) () 2.601.852 -
8500 Total comprehensive income 562,018 - 3,872,747 1
Net profit attributable to:
8610 Owners of parent 2,961,101 | 1,334,094 1
8620 Net profit non-controlling interests 31.903 - (63.199) -
2,993,004 1 1,270,895 1
Comprehensive income attributable to:
8710 Owners of parent 531,776 3,933,920 |
8720 Non-controlling interests 30.242 - (61.173) _ -
Total comprehensive income 562,018 - 3,872,747 1
Earnings per share (in dollars), after tax (note 6(r))
9750 Basic earnings per share 1.20 0.53
9850 Diluted earnings per share 1.17 0.51

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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WISTRON CORPORATION AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

(expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

2016 2015
Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit before tax s, 4.757.100 2.370.363
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash generated from operating activities:
Depreciation expense 7.657414 7842216
Amortization expense 392,107 433,006
Net loss (gain) on financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 1,028,106 (947,135)
Interest expense 1,981,651 1,862,406
Interest income (933,693) (1.609.279)
Dividend income (108,650) (132.890)
Compensation cost arising from shares-based payment 173,179 (78,500)
Recognized share of associates and joint ventures accounted for equity method 70,420 (200.797)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 383,549 846,672
Property, plant and equipment transferred to expenses 511 4161
Other assets transferred o expense 16,977 30,493
Gain on disposal of intangible assets (72,753) -
Loss (gain) on disposal of investments 9317 (8,149)
Other investments loss 40,611 431384
Impairment loss on asscts 377,110 174,272
Loss on retirement of convertible bonds - 6,827
Exchange difference of bonds payable - (5.134)
11.045.854 8.649.553
Changes in operating assets and liabilitics
Changes in operating asscts:
Decrease in accounts receivable 64.266 10,614,954
Decrease in accounts receivable-related parties 514,100 3,507,330
Decrease (increase) in other receivable-related parties 17 (4,678)
Decrease in inventories 487.616 8,122,798
Decrease (increase) in other current assels (747.195) 26.031
Total changes in operating assets 318.804 22.266.435
Changes in operating liabilities
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 25518957 (12316,614)
Decrease in accounts payable-related parties (907.250) (4.261,722)
Decrease in other payable-related parties (22.845) (500.768)
Increase in provisions 52514 343391
Increase in other current liabilities 8.024.709 2.006.677
Decrease in other non-current liabilities (322.041) (192.308)
Total changes in operating liabilities 32.344.044 (14.921.344)
Net changes in operating assets and liabilities 32.662.848 7.345.091
Total changes in operating assets and liabilitics 43.708.702 15.994.644

Cash generated from operations

48,465,802

Interest received 999.360
Dividends received 500,167
Interest paid (2.074,827)
Income taxes paid Q2 28)

Net cash generated from operating activities
Cash flows used in investing activities:
Decrease in other receivable-related parties

18.365.009

1,699.312

399811
(1.970,191)
(2.743.939)

274

15.750.002

11,020
Increase in available-for-sale financial asscts (7.101,721)
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale financial assets 6,194.401
Increase in financial assets at cost (357.662)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at cost -
Retumn of capital of financial assels at cosl 61.204
Increase in equity-accounted investees (529.648)
Proceeds from disposal of equity-accounted investees 371,535
Increase in property. plant and equipment (6,493.097)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 452293
Increase in of intangible assets (443,013)
Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets 293141
Decrease in refundable deposits 23,058
Increase in other financial assets (267,.366)
Increase in other non-current assets (2.874.447)

Cash received (out flow) through merger
Other
Net cash Mows used in investing activities
Cash flows used in financing activities:
Increase of short-term loans
Repayments of short-term loans
Retirement of convertible bonds

(124.820)

10,722
(2,762,008)
2,491,350

(490,182)
22532
56.641

(100,060)

(3,784.661)
435475
(370.066)

(2.092.990)
32,669
1932

(10.785.122)

(6.528.646)

443.824.262
(438,433,390)

Increase in long-term loans 22,554,167
Repayments of long-term loans (29.359,116)
Decrease in deposits received (302,164)
Cash dividends to sharcholders (2.903.716) (2,961,921)
Retirement of treasury stock (333.236) (2.721,183)
Treasury shares transferred to employces 669,644 25,001
Change in non-controlling interests 429.599 42.207
Net cash flows used in financing activities (34.945.376) (7.937.167)

Effect of exchange rate changes (626.480) 1.583.236
Netincrease (decrease) in cash and cash cquivalents (998.704) 2867425
Cash and cash eq ents at beginning of year 58.539.754 692.329
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year S 57,561,050 8,559,754

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Appendix 2

Audit Committee’s Review Report

The Board of Directors has prepared the Company’s 2016 Business Report,
Financial Statements, and proposal for allocation of profits. The CPA firm of
KPMG was retained to audit Wistron’s Financial Statements and has issued an
audit report relating to the Financial Statements. The Business Report, Financial
Statements, and profit allocation proposal have been reviewed and determined to
be correct and accurate by the Audit Committee of Wistron Corporation.
According to Article 14-4 of the Securities and Exchange Act and Article 219 of
the Company Act, I hereby submit this report.

Wistron Corporation

Convener of the Audit Committee

// e éwggk 7@%

March 20, 2017
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Appendix 3

Comparison between Original and Amendments to
“Codes of Ethical Conduct”

Items Original Version Amendment Version Reason
Article 2 | Applicable Range and Definition Applicable Range and Definition To comply with
The Codes of Ethical Conduct shall | The Codes of Ethical Conduct shall |the Regulation
apply to the Directors of the Board apply to the Directors of the Board update.
(including the independent Directors, | (including the independent Directors,
and hereinafter referred the same), and hereinafter referred the same),
managerial officers and employees managerial officers and employees
employed or entrusted by the employed or delegated by the
Company (hereinafter as Relevant Company or persons having
Personnel). substantial control over the Company
(hereinafter as Relevant Personnel).
Article 8 | The Execution for Codes of Ethical | The Execution for Codes of Ethical | To comply with

Conduct

1. To achieve sound ethical corporate
management, Adm. & H.R unit is
delegated to take charge of
establishing and supervising the
implementation of the ethical
corporate management policies and
related measures, and it shall report
to the Board of Directors on a
regular basis; and relevant units
shall hold training courses and
publicize the Codes of Ethical
Conduct to ensure that all Relevant
Personnel understand, accept and
will strictly abide by and enforce
the Codes.

2. All Relevant Personnel shall keep
alert in any action that might
contravene the Codes of Ethical
Conduct. When in doubt or
discover any action that will breach
the Codes of Ethical Conduct, they
have the responsibility to report to
supervisors or the Board of
Directors. When necessary, one can
directly report to the head
supervisors of human resources
department, the head supervisors of
audit department, the chairman or
through the employee complaint
channels. When Relevant
Personnel report an action that

Conduct

1. To achieve sound ethical corporate
management, Adm. & H.R unit is
delegated to take charge of
establishing and supervising the
implementation of the ethical
corporate management policies and
related measures, and it shall report
to the Board of Directors on a
regular basis; and relevant units
shall hold training courses and
publicize the Codes of Ethical
Conduct to ensure that all Relevant
Personnel understand, accept and
will strictly abide by and enforce
the Codes.

the Regulation
update.
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Items Original Version Amendment Version Reason
Article 8 contravenes the Codes of Ethical contravenes-the-Codes-of Ethical- | To comply with

Conduct or involves in the Conduectorinvolvesin-the- the Regulation
investigation process that ensues as | iavestigationprocessthat-ensues-as- |update.
a result in the report by Relevant aresuit-inthe-report-by-Relevant
Personnel, the Company shall Personnelthe- Company-shal-
provide them protection so that provide-them-protection-se-that-
they will not be treated unjustly or they will not be treated unjustly or
prevent from retaliation. prevent from retaliation.

3. When a manager or employee 3. When a manager or employee
contravenes the Codes of Ethical contravenes the Codes of Ethical-
Conduct, the Company shall take Conduet-the- Company-shal-take-
actions including dismissal or actionsncluding-dismissal-or-
termination of entrustment in termination of entrustment in-
accordance to the relevant accordance to the relevant
regulations in the “Enforcement regulations in the “Enforcement
Guidelines for the Reward and Gitdelinesforthe-Reward-and-
Punishment of Employees”. Punishment of Employees™.

4. When the Director commits an act | 4-When-the-Director-commits-an-act
that contravenes the Codes of that contravenes the Codes of
Ethical Conduct, it shall be handed Ethical-Conduct—it shal-be-handed-
to the Board of Directors for to the Board of Directors for
further investigation and furthernvestigation-and-
disposition. disposition.

5. For those who are involved with 5-Forthose-who-are-invelved-with-
the Company’s business operation the Company’s business operation
and who also contravene the and-wheo-also-contravene-the-
principles of Integrity and freedom principles of Integrity and freedom
from corruption, the Company from-corruption—the-Compary-
shall strictly dispose of such case, shall strictly dispose of such case,
and shall decrease or cancel the and-shat-decrease-orcancelthe-
business relationship with business relationship with
aforementioned companies aferementioned-compantes-
depending on the gravity of the depending on the gravity of the
situation. Such cases will be situation—Sueh-cases-with-be-
handed to judicial authorities for handed to judicial authorities for
disposition. dispositton:

6. Relevant Personnel shall continue
to raise awareness and publicize
the Company’s Codes of Ethical
Conduct to business related units or
other companies that are involved
in the business relations with the
Company to ensure that they
understand and support the
determination and polices of the
ethical corporate management of
the Company.

26. Relevant Personnel shall
continue to raise awareness and
publicize the Company’s Codes of
Ethical Conduct to business related
units or other companies that are
involved in the business relations
with the Company to ensure that
they understand and support the
determination and polices of the
ethical corporate management of
the Company.
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Items

Original Version

Amendment \ersion

Reason

Article 9

(newly added)

Disciplinary measures on the

Relevant Personnel involved in

violation of the Codes

1. The Company encourages the
insiders and outsiders to report
any activities which violate the
Codes, however, insiders shall not
make false report or malicious
accusation, people who conduct
the aforementioned behaviors
shall be subject to disciplinary
action, and removed from office
if the circumstance concerned is
material.

2. A whistleblower shall at least
furnish the following information:
(1) The whistleblower’s name and

I.D. number, and the
communication channels to
reach him/her.

(2)The informed party’s name or
other information sufficient to
distinguish its identifying
features.

(3)Specific facts and evidences
available for investigation.

3. Company personnel handling
reported matters shall represent in
writing that they will keep the
whistleblowers’ identity and
contents of information
confidential. This Corporation
also undertakes to protect the
whistleblowers from improper
treatment due to their report. The
responsible unit of this
Corporation shall observe the
following procedure:

(1) Tip involving a general
employee shall be reported to
the department head or the
highest manager of
Administration and Adm. &
H.R unit; tip involving a
director or senior manager shall

be reported to the highest

manager of Auditing office or

the independent directors.
(2)The responsible unit of the

To comply with
the Regulation
update.
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Items

Original Version

Amendment \ersion

Reason

Article 9

(newly added)

Company and the department
head or personnel being
reported to in the preceding
subparagraph shall
immediately verify the facts,
and be provided with the
assistance of the legal
compliance or other related
department if necessary.

(3)If a person being informed of
is confirmed to have indeed
violated the Codes of Ethical
Conduct, the Company shall
immediately require the
violator to cease the conduct
and shall make an appropriate
disposition. When necessary,
the Company will institute
legal proceedings and seek
damages to safeguard its
reputation and its rights and
interests.

(4)The business transaction
counterparties involved in
violating the Codes of Ethical
Conduct will be strictly treated

by the Company by decreasing

or canceling the cooperation
with the Company according
to the extent of violation, or
reported to the corresponding
judicial authorities.
(5)Documentation of case

acceptance, investigation
processes and investigation
results shall be retained for
five years and may be retained

electronically. In the event of a

suit in respect of the reported
case before the retention
period expires, the relevant
information shall continue to
be retained until the
conclusion of the litigation.
(6)With respect to a confirmed

reported case, the Company
shall charge relevant units with

the task of reviewing the
internal control system and

To comply with
the Regulation
update.
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Items Original Version Amendment Version Reason
Article 9 | (newly added) relevant procedures and To comply with
proposing corrective measures |the Regulation
to prevent recurrence. update.
(7)The responsible unit of the
Company shall submit to the
board of directors a report on
the reported case, actions
taken, and subsequent reviews
and corrective measures.
Article 10 | Enforcement and Amendment Enforcement and Amendment Correspondence
(Original | The Principles will be implemented | The Principles will be implemented  |to the
Article 9) | after adoption by resolution of the after adoption by resolution of the amendment
Board of Directors, same as Board of Directors, same as date.

amendment, and will be delivered to
the shareholders meeting for report.
The Codes are enacted on March
25" 2014.

amendment, and will be delivered to
the shareholders meeting for report.
The Codes are enacted on March
25 2014.

The 1* amendment was made on
November 11, 2016.
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Appendix 4

Article 1

Article 2

Article 3

Wistron Corporation
Codes of Ethical Conduct

Purpose

The Codes of Ethical Conduct was established to enforce the Wistron

Corporation (hereinafter as the Company)’s core values, and maintain its high

level of business ethics, as well as for Relevant Personnel to strictly abide by the

Company’s standard code of ethical conduct to uphold the company’s

reputation, and to gain the respect and trust of customers, suppliers and

professionals of all fields. The Codes of Ethical Conduct was thereby

established and shall be duly followed.

Applicable Range and Definition

The Codes of Ethical Conduct shall apply to the Directors of the Board

(including the independent Directors, and hereinafter referred the same),

managerial officers and employees employed or delegated by the Company or

persons having substantial control over the Company (hereinafter as Relevant

Personnel).

Important Codes of Ethical Conduct

1. Integrity is Wistron’s core value, and is also the root for operating an
enterprise. To operate an enterprise based on Integrity is to provide a job
environment and atmosphere that will allow Relevant Personnel to execute
their job duties in accordance to the ethical standard. The Company requires
that all Relevant Personnel to fully understand and abide by the Codes of

Ethical Conduct and Self Integrity. The following is the relevant and

important codes of ethical conduct:

(1) One must strictly keep confidential the information related to the
Company or clients whom the Company purchases goods from or whom
the Company sells products to. Unless being authorized or prescribed
under law to disclose the above information, one has the obligation to
keep confidentiality. The confidential information that must not be
disclosed includes all information that could be possibly used by
competitors or cause damages to the Company or the Company’s clients
after disclosure.

(2) When one uses information related to the Company or clients whom the
Company purchases goods from or whom the Company sells products
to, one must not contravene the acts and laws, or the Company’s
Policies and Procedures on the Protection of Confidential Information.
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©)

(4)

()

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

One must treat clients whom the Company purchases goods from or
whom the Company sells the products to, the competing companies and
employees on a fair and equal basis, and must not use the information
obtained through job convenience to manipulate, conceal, or misuse
such information to make false statement on important matters, or use
such information to obtain unjust benefits through other unjust
transactions.

One must be loyal to his or her job, and the execution of duties,
including disposition of money, purchase, safekeeping assets, evaluation
of performances and making and ratification of reports, shall be
accomplished with Integrity, diligence and dedication.

One has the duty to protect the Company’s assets and resources, and
ensure that such assets and resources can be legally and effectively used
in business operation. It is strictly prohibited to use the Company’s
assets or resources to gain personal interest. One should also recuse
from negatively affecting the Company’s interest through personal or
department’s interest or through stealing, neglecting, and wasting the
Company’s assets and resources.

One must recuse from any conflict that will result in the conflict of
personal and the Company’s interest.

One must not participate or instigate others to proceed in activities or
relationships that might cause harm to job loyalty or professional
judgment.

One must not request, accept, or give any gifts, donations, political
donations or treats (bribery) that might cause harm to job loyalty or
professional judgment.

One must not commit any acts that will damage the reputation of the
Company.

(10) One must abide by the national acts, rules and regulations. One must not

be involved in any illegal or inappropriate activities under any
circumstances.

. The Codes of Ethical Conduct will not be limited to acts, rules and
regulations. The spirit in the execution of this is in the high level of
self-restraint, and that one will abide by the Codes without violating general
conventions.

When Relevant Personnel cannot determine whether an action or a
circumstance fits with the Company’s Codes of Ethical Conduct, one should
check its adequacy based on the following principles:
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Article 4

Article 5

(1)Whether the disclosure of such relationship or action will cause negative
effects to the Company’s reputation.

(2)Whether the process of such relationship or action will be generally
interpreted as having effects on the just execution of job duties or
professional judgment.

Recusal Policy on the Conflict of Interest

1. The Relevant Personnel should recuse from any conflict that will cause
conflict between the personal and Company’s interest. For this, the
Relevant Personnel shall automatically and fully report to the direct
supervisor and the management personnel of the highest level in Human
Resource department (suitable for Relevant Personnel who are not
Directors of the Board), or the Board of Directors (suitable for Directors
of the Board) upon knowing or facing (not limited to) the following
circumstances and explain how the personal interest can be conflicting
with the Company’s interest:

(1) When the positions held by the Relevant Personnel might let them,
their spouse, or third-degree relatives gain unjust benefits, or obstruct
their objective and effective handling of business operations.

(2) When the activities participated by the Relevant Personnel outside the
Company cause direct competition against the Company’s business
operation, or obstruct with the Relevant Personnel’s positions held
and duties in the Company.

(3) Using the Company’s resources (such as information, objects or
property) to participate in activities outside the Company without the
Company’s permission.

(4) Has third-degree relatives working in the Company.

2. When the Company receives reports from the Relevant Personnel on how
their actions do not fit the Recusal Policy on the Conflict of Interest, the
Chairman (suitable for Directors of the Board) or the management
personnel of the highest level in Human Resource department (suitable for
Relevant Personnel who are not Directors of the Board), together with the
involved Relevant Personnel’s supervisor of the highest level from their
affiliating organization shall discuss handling principles and procedures,
and pass the case to the general manager (suitable for Relevant Personnel
who are not Directors of the Board) for authorization, or pass the case to
the Board of Directors (suitable for Directors of the Board) to handle.

Giving Presents and Treats as Part of Business Routine

1. To maintain the highest standard for ethical conduct, one must not accept
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4.

or give any presents, cash gifts, treats from suppliers, contractors, clients,

and other relevant parties and groups (including governmental agencies)

involved in the Company’s business operation, for such action will affect
the normal operation of business and judgment. Any form of bribery is
strictly prohibited.

When it is necessary to accept presents or any types of gifts, one shall

proceed in accordance to the following in addition to abiding by Paragraph

1 of Article 5:

(1)One must not accept cash, check, or any valuable papers (such as gift
coupons or stocks).

(2)When one has to accept as a courtesy the presents or treats, the value of
such must not exceed or can only be equivalent of NTD1,000 as the
maximum limit. If the presents from the company include its trademark
souvenirs, then the value of such must not exceed and can only be
equivalent of NTD$6,000 as the maximum limit.

(3)If one must accept a present in the fear that refusal might be
inappropriate, and such present temporarily accepted has exceeded the
value stated in Paragraph 2.b. in Article 5, such present shall be handed
to the Executive Secretary of the Employees’ Welfare Committee within
seven days of acceptance for disposition.

(4)One must not subscribe any shares of stock or any other similar
preferential packages from any units or companies that are involved
with the Company’s business operation outside the open transaction
market.

To maintain and promote the normal business relationship and operation of

the Company, one may be permitted to give presents to relevant individuals

involved in the Company’s business operation. However, such acts must be
done in accordance to the aforementioned Paragraph 1 under Article 5, and
abide by the following rules:

(1)Write down what the presents were for and the presents shall contain the
name of the Company.

(2)One should select the most appropriate presents for subjects from the
presents provided by the Company.

When one accepts or arranges any treats related to business operation, they

shall be done in accordance to the rules of general business courtesy and

cannot be too frequent, and must not let customers or companies think that
such presents or treats are part of the conditions to maintain business
relationship with the Company.
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Article 6

Article 7

Article 8

5. The relationship and interaction between superiors and employees shall
also be processed pursuant to the spirits and principles of this Codes of
Ethical Conduct.

The Procedure for Handling the Provision of Legal Political Donations

When Relevant Personnel makes direct or indirect donations to a political

party, or an organization or individual participating in political activities, they

should abide by the following basic principles:

1. It should be done pursuant to the Political Donations Act and relevant acts,
and shall not use it to seek commercial benefits or transaction advantages.

2. Relevant Personnel shall not directly or indirectly provide political
donations in the name of the Company.

3. One must not use any of the Company’s property, facility or to participate
in political activities during working hours.

4. When making political donations in the Company’s name, it must be done
only after the approval of the Chairman notwithstanding the amount of
such donation.

The Procedure and Amount Standards for Handling the Provision of Just

Charitable Donations or Sponsorship

When Relevant Personnel make charitable donations or sponsorship, they shall

abide by the following basic principles:

1. It should be done pursuant to relevant acts and internal operation
procedures, and must not turn into an act of bribery through other manners.

2. If one makes a legal charitable donation or sponsorship in the Company’s
name, it must be done only after the Chairman’s approval notwithstanding
the amount of such donation or sponsorship.

The Execution for Codes of Ethical Conduct

1. To achieve sound ethical corporate management, Adm. & H.R unit is
delegated to take charge of establishing and supervising the
implementation of the ethical corporate management policies and related
measures, and it shall report to the Board of Directors on a regular basis;
and relevant units shall hold training courses and publicize the Codes of
Ethical Conduct to ensure that all Relevant Personnel understand, accept
and will strictly abide by and enforce the Codes.

2. Relevant Personnel shall continue to raise awareness and publicize the
Company’s Codes of Ethical Conduct to business related units or other
companies that are involved in the business relations with the Company to
ensure that they understand and support the determination and polices of
the ethical corporate management of the Company.
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Article 9

Disciplinary measures on the Relevant Personnel involved in violation of the
Codes
1. The Company encourages the insiders and outsiders to report any activities
which violate the Codes, however, insiders shall not make false report or
malicious accusation, people who conduct the aforementioned behaviors
shall be subject to disciplinary action, and removed from office if the
circumstance concerned is material.
2. Awhistleblower shall at least furnish the following information:
(1)The whistleblower’s name and 1.D. number, and the communication
channels to reach him/her.
(2)The informed party’s name or other information sufficient to distinguish
its identifying features.
(3)Specific facts and evidences available for investigation.
3. Company personnel handling reported matters shall represent in writing
that they will keep the whistleblowers’ identity and contents of information
confidential. This Corporation also undertakes to protect the
whistleblowers from improper treatment due to their report. The
responsible unit of this Corporation shall observe the following procedure:
(1)Tip involving a general employee shall be reported to the department
head or the highest manager of Administration and Adm. & H.R unit;
tip involving a director or senior manager shall be reported to the highest
manager of Auditing office or the independent directors.
(2)The responsible unit of the Company and the department head or
personnel being reported to in the preceding subparagraph shall
immediately verify the facts, and be provided with the assistance of the
legal compliance or other related department if necessary.
(3)If a person being informed of is confirmed to have indeed violated the
Codes of Ethical Conduct, the Company shall immediately require the
violator to cease the conduct and shall make an appropriate disposition.
When necessary, the Company will institute legal proceedings and seek
damages to safeguard its reputation and its rights and interests.
(4)The business transaction counterparties involved in violating the Codes

of Ethical Conduct will be strictly treated by the Company by

decreasing or canceling the cooperation with the Company according to
the extent of violation, or reported to the corresponding judicial
authorities.
(5)Documentation of case acceptance, investigation processes and
investigation results shall be retained for five years and may be retained
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electronically. In the event of a suit in respect of the reported case
before the retention period expires, the relevant information shall
continue to be retained until the conclusion of the litigation.

(6)With respect to a confirmed reported case, the Company shall charge
relevant units with the task of reviewing the internal control system and
relevant procedures and proposing corrective measures to prevent
recurrence.

(7)The responsible unit of the Company shall submit to the board of
directors a report on the reported case, actions taken, and subsequent
reviews and corrective measures.

Article 10  Enforcement and Amendment
The Principles will be implemented after adoption by resolution of the Board of
Directors, same as amendment, and will be delivered to the shareholders
meeting for report.
The Codes are enacted on March 25", 2014.
The 1% amendment was made on November 11, 20186.
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Appendix 5

Comparison between Original and Amendments to
“Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Principles”

Items Original Version Amendment Version Reason
Article 2 | When engaging in commercial When engaging in commercial To comply with
activities, directors, managers and activities, directors, managers, ard  |the Regulation
employees of the Company shall not | employees, mandataries of the update.
directly or indirectly offer, promise Company or persons having
to offer, request or accept any substantial control over the Company
improper benefits, or commit (“substantial controllers™) shall not
unethical acts including breach of directly or indirectly offer, promise
ethics, illegal acts, or breach of to offer, request or accept any
fiduciary duty (“unethical conduct™) | improper benefits, or commit
for purposes of acquiring or unethical acts including breach of
maintaining benefits. ethics, illegal acts, or breach of
Parties referred to in the preceding fiduciary duty (“unethical conduct™)
paragraph include civil servants, for purposes of acquiring or
political candidates, political parties | maintaining benefits.
or members of political parties, Parties referred to in the preceding
state-run or private-owned paragraph include civil servants,
businesses or institutions, and their political candidates, political parties
directors, managers, employees or or members of political parties,
other stakeholders. state-run or private-owned
businesses or institutions, and their
directors, managers, employees,
mandataries, substantial controllers
or other stakeholders.
Article 4 | Compliance with applicable laws or | Compliance with applicable laws or | To comply with
regulations regulations the Regulation
The Company shall comply with the | The Company shall comply with the |update.
Company Act, Securities and Company Act, Securities and
Exchange Act, Business Entity Exchange Act, Business Entity
Accounting Act, Political Donations | Accounting Act, Political Donations
Act, Anti-Corruption Statute, Act, Anti-Corruption Statute,
Government Procurement Act, or Government Procurement Act, Act.
TWSE/GTSM-listing rules, as the on Recusal of Public Servants Due to
underlying basic premise to facilitate | Conflicts of Interest, of
ethical corporate management. TWSE/GTSM-listing rules or other
laws or regulations regarding
commercial activities, as the
underlying basic premise to facilitate
ethical corporate management.
Avrticle 10 | Prohibition of bribery Prohibition of bribery To comply with

When conducting business, the
Company and directors, managers
and employees, shall not directly or
indirectly offer, promise to offer,
request or accept any improper

When conducting business, the
Company-and directors, managers-
and, employees, mandataries and
substantial controllers of the
Company shall not directly or

the Regulation
update.
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Items Original Version Amendment Version Reason
Article 10 | benefits, including rebates, indirectly offer, promise to offer, To comply with
commissions, grease payments, or request or accept any improper the Regulation
offer or accept improper benefits in benefits, including rebates, update.
other ways to or from clients, agents, | commissions, grease payments, or
contractors, suppliers, public offer or accept improper benefits in
servants, or other stakeholders, other ways to or from clients, agents,
unless the laws of the territories contractors, suppliers, public
where the Company operate permit | servants, or other stakeholders:-
S0. unless-the-laws-of the-territories-
where the Company operate permit
50.
Article 11 | Prohibition of offering illegal Prohibition of offering illegal To comply with
political donations political donations the Regulation
When directly or indirectly offering a | When directly or indirectly offering a |update.
donation to political parties or donation to political parties or
organizations or individuals organizations or individuals
participating in political activities, participating in political activities,
the Company and directors, the Cempany-and directors,
managers and employees, shall managers, employees, mandataries
comply with the Political Donations | and substantial controllers of the
Act and their own relevant internal Company shall comply with the
operational procedures, and shall not | Political Donations Act and their
make such donations in exchange for | own relevant internal operational
commercial gains or business procedures, and shall not make such
advantages. donations in exchange for
commercial gains or business
advantages.
Article 12 | Prohibition of improper donations Prohibition of improper donations To comply with
and sponsorship and sponsorship the Regulation
When making or offering donations | When making or offering donations |update.
and sponsorship, the Company and and sponsorship, the Company-and-
their directors, managers and their directors, managers and,
employees shall comply with employees, mandataries and
relevant laws and regulations and substantial controllers of the
internal operational procedures, and | Company shall comply with relevant
shall not surreptitiously engage in laws and regulations and internal
bribery. operational procedures, and shall not
surreptitiously engage in bribery.
Article 13 | Prohibition of unreasonable presents, | Prohibition of unreasonable presents, |To comply with

hospitality or other improper benefits
The Company and directors,
managers and employees shall not
directly or indirectly offer or accept
any unreasonable presents,
hospitality or other improper benefits
to establish business relationship or
influence commercial transactions.

hospitality or other improper benefits
The Company-and directors,
managers and, employees,
mandataries and substantial
controllers of the Company shall not
directly or indirectly offer or accept
any unreasonable presents,
hospitality or other improper benefits
to establish business relationship or
influence commercial transactions.

the Regulation
update.
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Items

Original Version

Amendment \ersion

Reason

Article 14

(newly added)

Prohibition of Intellectual Property
Right Infringement

The directors, managers, employees,
mandataries and substantial
controllers of the Company shall
observe applicable laws and
regulations concerning intellectual
property, the Company’s internal
operational procedures, and may not
use, disclose, dispose, or damage
intellectual property or otherwise
infringe intellectual property rights
without the prior consent of the
intellectual property rights owner.

To comply with
the Regulation
update.

Article 15

(newly added)

Prohibition of conducting unfair
competition behavior

The Company shall engage in
business activities in accordance
with applicable competition laws and

regulations, and may not fix prices,
make rigged bids, establish output or

guotas restrictions, or share or divide

markets by allocating customers,
suppliers, territories, or lines of
commerce.

To comply with
the Regulation
update.

Article 16

(newly added)

Preventing product or service from
damaging interested party

In the course of research and
development, procurement,
manufacture, provision, or sale of
products and services, the directors,
managers, employees, mandataries,
and substantial controllers of the
Company shall observe applicable
laws and regulations and
international standards to ensure the
transparency of information about,
and the safety of, their products and
services. They shall also adopt and
publish a policy on the protection of
the rights and interests of consumers
or other stakeholders, and carry out
the policy in their operations, with a
view to preventing their products and

services from directly or indirectly
damaging the rights and interests,
health, and safety of consumers or
other stakeholders. Where there are
sufficient facts to determine that the

To comply with
the Regulation
update.

53




Items Original Version Amendment Version Reason
Article 16 | (newly added) company’s products or services are | To comply with
likely to pose any hazard to the the Regulation
safety and health of consumers or update.
other stakeholders, the company
shall, in principle, recall those
products or suspend the services
immediately.
Article 17 | Organization and responsibility Organization and responsibility To comply with
(Original | The Board of Directors of the The Board-ef Directors directors, the Regulation
Article 14) | Company shall exercise the due care | managers, employees, mandataries, |update.
of good administrators to urge the and substantial controllers of the
Company to prevent unethical Company shall exercise the due care
conduct, always review the results of | of good administrators to urge the
the preventive measures and Company to prevent unethical
continually make adjustments so as to | conduct, always review the results of
ensure thorough implementation of | the preventive measures and
its ethical corporate management continually make adjustments so as
policies. to ensure thorough implementation
To achieve sound ethical corporate of its ethical corporate management
management, Administration and policies.
Human Resource Department is To achieve sound ethical corporate
delegated to take charge of management, Administration and
establishing and supervising the Human Resource Department is
implementation of the ethical delegated to take charge of
corporate management policies and | establishing and supervising the
prevention programs. If any material | implementation of the ethical
violation is discovered, the Company | corporate management policies and
shall report to the Board of Directors. | prevention programs, and it shall H#
il violation is i ]
the-Company-shat-report to the
Board of Directors on a regular basis.
Article 18 | Compliance with applicable laws or | Compliance with applicable laws or | To comply with
(Original | regulations when conducting regulations when conducting the Regulation
Article 15) | business business update.
The Company and directors, The Company-and directors,
managers and employees shall managers and, employees,
comply with laws and regulations mandataries, and substantial
and the prevention measure when controllers of the Company shall
conducting business. comply with laws and regulations
and the prevention measure when
conducting business.
Article 19 | Avoiding conflicts of interest of Avoiding conflicts of interest of To comply with
(Original | directors and managers directors and managers the Regulation
Article 16) | The Company shall adopt policies for | The Company shall adopt policies update.

preventing conflicts of interest and
offer appropriate means for directors
and managers to voluntarily explain
whether their interests would
potentially conflict with those of the

for preventing conflicts of interest
and offer appropriate means for
directors and, managers and other
stakeholders attending or present at
board meetings to voluntarily explain
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Items Original Version Amendment Version Reason
Article 19 | company. The details according to whether their interests would To comply with
(Original | “The Adoption of Codes of Ethical potentially conflict with those of the |the Regulation
Article 16) | Conduct” of the Company. company. The details according to update.
The Company’s directors shall “The Adoption of Codes of Ethical
exercise a high degree of Conduct” of the Company.
self-discipline, a director may present | The Company’s directors, managers
his opinion and answer relevant and other stakeholders attending or
questions but is prohibited from present at board meetings shall
participating in discussion of or exercise a high degree of
voting on any proposal where the self-discipline, a director may
director or the juristic person that the | present his opinion and answer
director represents is an interested relevant questions but is prohibited
party, and such participation is likely | from participating in discussion of or
to prejudice the interests of the voting on any proposal where the
Company; neither shall a director director or the juristic person that the
vote on such proposal as a proxy of | director represents is an interested
another director in such party, and such participation is likely
circumstances. The directors shall to prejudice the interests of the
practice self-discipline and must not | Company; neither shall a director
support one another in improper vote on such proposal as a proxy of
dealings. another director in such
The directors and managers of the circumstances. The directors shall
Company shall not take advantage of | practice self-discipline and must not
their positions in the company to support one another in improper
obtain improper benefits for dealings.
themselves, their spouses, parents, The directors and, managers,
children or any other person. employees, mandataries and
substantial controllers of the
Company shall not take advantage of
their positions in the company to
obtain improper benefits for
themselves, their spouses, parents,
children or any other person.
Acrticle 20 | Operational procedures and Operational procedures and To comply with
(Original | guidelines guidelines the Regulation
Article 17) | The Company shall establish The Company shall establish update.
operational procedures and guidelines | operational procedures and
in accordance with Article 6 hereof to | guidelines in accordance with Article
guide directors, managers and 6 hereof to guide directors, managers
employees on how to conduct and, employees, mandataries and
business. The procedures and substantial controllers on how to
guidelines should at least contain the | conduct business. The procedures
following matters: and guidelines should at least contain
...... the following matters:
Article 21 | Training and assessment Training and assessment To comply with
(Original | The Company shall periodically The Company shall periodically the Regulation
Article 18) | organize training and awareness organize training and awareness update.

programs for directors, managers and

programs for directors, managers
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Items Original Version Amendment Version Reason
Article 21 | employees and invite the Company’s | and, employees, mandataries and To comply with
(Original | commercial transaction substantial controllers and invite the |the Regulation
Article 18) | counterparties so they understand the | Company’s commercial transaction  |update.
Company’s resolve to implement counterparties so they understand the
ethical corporate management, the Company’s resolve to implement
related policies, prevention measure | ethical corporate management, the
and the consequences of committing | related policies, prevention measure
unethical conduct. and the consequences of committing
...... unethical conduct.
Article 22 | Rewards, penalties, and complaints Reporting and Discipline To comply with
(Original | The Company shall have in place a The company adopts a concrete the Regulation
Article 19) | formal channel for receiving reports | whistle-blowing system which update.

on unethical conduct and keep the
reporter’s identity and content of the
report confidential.

The Company shall establish a
well-defined disciplinary and
complaint system to handle violation
of the ethical corporate management
rules, and immediately disclose on
the Company’s internal website the
offender’s job title, name, date the
violation was committed, violating
act and how the matter was handled.

includes the following: shal-have-in-
I el s o

act-and-how-the-matterwas-handled:

1. An appropriate reporting channel
to allow company insiders and
outsiders to submit reports.

2. The dedicated personnel who are
or the dedicated unit which is
appointed to handle
whistle-blowing system shall
report any tip involving a director

or senior manager to the
independent directors or the
highest manager of Auditing
office. Categories of reported
misconduct shall be delineated
and standard operating procedures

for the investigation of each shall
be adopted.

3. Documentation and retention of
case acceptance, investigation
processes, investigation results,
and relevant documents.

4. Confidentiality of the identity of
whistle-blowers and the content
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Items Original Version Amendment Version Reason

Article 22 of reported cases. To comply with
(Original 5. Measures for protecting the Regulation
Article 19) whistle-blowers from update.

inappropriate disciplinary actions
due to their whistle-blowing.
6. Whistle-blowing incentive

measures.
Article 26 | The Principles were enacted on The Principles were enacted on Correspondence
(Original | March 25, 2014. March 25, 2014. to the
Article 23) The 1% amendment was made on amendment
November 11, 2016. date.
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Appendix 6

Wistron Corporation

Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Principles

Article 1

Article 2

Article 3

Article 4

Purpose of adoption and scope of application

The Principles is promulgated to assist the Company to strengthen a corporate
culture of ethical management and sound development, and offer a reference
framework for establishing good commercial practices.

In addition to juristic persons or institutions who already set up the Ethical
Corporate Management Best Practice Principles or other internal rules, the
Principles of the Company applicable to its business groups and organizations
of the Company, which comprise its subsidiaries, any foundation to which the
Company’s direct or indirect contribution of funds exceeds 50% of the total
funds received, and other institutions or juridical persons which are
substantially controlled by the Company (“business group”).

Prohibition of unethical conduct

When engaging in commercial activities, directors, managers, employees,
mandataries of the Company or persons having substantial control over the
Company (“substantial controllers”) shall not directly or indirectly offer,
promise to offer, request or accept any improper benefits, or commit unethical
acts including breach of ethics, illegal acts, or breach of fiduciary duty
(“unethical conduct”) for purposes of acquiring or maintaining benefits.

Parties referred to in the preceding paragraph include civil servants, political
candidates, political parties or members of political parties, state-run or
private-owned businesses or institutions, and their directors, managers,
employees, mandataries, substantial controllers or other stakeholders.

Types of benefits

“Benefits” in the Principles means any valuable things, including money,
endowments, commissions, positions, services, preferential treatment or rebates
of any type or in any name. Benefits received or given occasionally in
accordance with accepted social customs and that do not adversely affect
specific rights and obligations shall be excluded.

Compliance with applicable laws or regulations

The Company shall comply with the Company Act, Securities and Exchange
Act, Business Entity Accounting Act, Political Donations Act, Anti-Corruption
Statute, Government Procurement Act, Act on Recusal of Public Servants Due
to Conflicts of Interest, TWSE/GTSM-listing rules or other laws or regulations
regarding commercial activities, as the underlying basic premise to facilitate
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Article 5

Article 6

Article 7

Article 8

Article 9

Article 10

ethical corporate management.

The policy

The Company shall abide by the operational philosophies of honesty,

transparency and responsibility, base policies on the principle of good faith and

establish good corporate governance and risk control and management

mechanism so as to create an operational environment for sustainable

development.

Prevention measure

The Company is advised to, in accordance with the operational philosophies and

policies prescribed in the preceding article, establish in their own ethical

corporate management best practice principle comprehensive programs to

forestall unethical conduct (“prevention measure”), including operational

procedures, guidelines, and training.

The Company set prevention measure should comply with the relevant laws of

the Republic of China.

The range of prevention measure

When establishing the prevention measure, the Company shall analyze which

business activities within their business scope which may be at a higher risk of

being involved in an unethical conduct, and strengthen the preventive measures.

The prevention measure established by the Company shall at least include

preventive measures against the following:

1. Offering and acceptance of bribes.

2. lllegal political donations.

3. Improper charitable donations or sponsorship.

4. Offering or acceptance of unreasonable presents or hospitality, or other
improper benefits.

Commission and implement

The Company and the respective business group shall clearly specify ethical

corporate management policies in their rules and external documents. The

Board of Directors and the management level shall undertake to rigorously and

thoroughly enforce such policies for internal management and external

commercial activities.

Commercial transactions in ethical

Prior to any commercial transactions, the Company will take into consideration

the legality of their agents, suppliers, clients or other trading counterparties, and

their records of unethical conduct, if any. It is advisable not to have any dealings

with persons who have any records of unethical conduct.

Prohibition of bribery
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Article 11

Article 12

Article 13

Article 14

Article 15

Article 16

When conducting business, the directors, managers, employees, mandataries
and substantial controllers of the Company shall not directly or indirectly offer,
promise to offer, request or accept any improper benefits, including rebates,
commissions, grease payments, or offer or accept improper benefits in other
ways to or from clients, agents, contractors, suppliers, public servants, or other
stakeholders.

Prohibition of offering illegal political donations

When directly or indirectly offering a donation to political parties or
organizations or individuals participating in political activities, the directors,
managers, employees, mandataries and substantial controllers of the Company
shall comply with the Political Donations Act and their own relevant internal
operational procedures, and shall not make such donations in exchange for
commercial gains or business advantages.

Prohibition of improper donations and sponsorship

When making or offering donations and sponsorship, the directors, managers,
employees, mandataries and substantial controllers of the Company shall
comply with relevant laws and regulations and internal operational procedures,
and shall not surreptitiously engage in bribery.

Prohibition of unreasonable presents, hospitality or other improper

benefits

The directors, managers, employees, mandataries and substantial controllers of
the Company shall not directly or indirectly offer or accept any unreasonable
presents, hospitality or other improper benefits to establish business relationship
or influence commercial transactions.

Prohibition of Intellectual Property Right Infringement

The directors, managers, employees, mandataries and substantial controllers of
the Company shall observe applicable laws and regulations concerning
intellectual property, the Company’s internal operational procedures, and may
not use, disclose, dispose, or damage intellectual property or otherwise infringe
intellectual property rights without the prior consent of the intellectual property
rights owner.

Prohibition of conducting unfair competition behavior

The Company shall engage in business activities in accordance with applicable
competition laws and regulations, and may not fix prices, make rigged bids,
establish output or quotas restrictions, or share or divide markets by allocating
customers, suppliers, territories, or lines of commerce.

Preventing product or service from damaging interested party

In the course of research and development, procurement, manufacture,
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Article 17

Article 18

Article 19

provision, or sale of products and services, the directors, managers, employees,
mandataries, and substantial controllers of the Company shall observe
applicable laws and regulations and international standards to ensure the
transparency of information about, and the safety of, their products and services.
They shall also adopt and publish a policy on the protection of the rights and
interests of consumers or other stakeholders, and carry out the policy in their
operations, with a view to preventing their products and services from directly
or indirectly damaging the rights and interests, health, and safety of consumers
or other stakeholders. Where there are sufficient facts to determine that the
company’s products or services are likely to pose any hazard to the safety and
health of consumers or other stakeholders, the company shall, in principle,
recall those products or suspend the services immediately.

Organization and responsibility

The directors, managers, employees, mandataries, and substantial controllers of
the Company shall exercise the due care of good administrators to urge the
Company to prevent unethical conduct, always review the results of the
preventive measures and continually make adjustments so as to ensure thorough
implementation of its ethical corporate management policies.

To achieve sound ethical corporate management, Administration and Human
Resource Department is delegated to take charge of establishing and supervising
the implementation of the ethical corporate management policies and prevention
programs, and it shall report to the Board of Directors on a regular basis.
Compliance with applicable laws or regulations when conducting business
The directors, managers, employees, mandataries, and substantial controllers of
the Company shall comply with laws and regulations and the prevention
measure when conducting business.

Avoiding conflicts of interest of directors and managers

The Company shall adopt policies for preventing conflicts of interest and offer
appropriate means for directors, managers and other stakeholders attending or
present at board meetings to voluntarily explain whether their interests would
potentially conflict with those of the company. The details according to “The
Adoption of Codes of Ethical Conduct” of the Company.

The Company’s directors, managers and other stakeholders attending or present
at board meetings shall exercise a high degree of self-discipline, a director may
present his opinion and answer relevant questions but is prohibited from
participating in discussion of or voting on any proposal where the director or the
juristic person that the director represents is an interested party, and such
participation is likely to prejudice the interests of the Company; neither shall a
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Article 20

Article 21

Article 22

director vote on such proposal as a proxy of another director in such

circumstances. The directors shall practice self-discipline and must not support

one another in improper dealings.

The directors, managers, employees, mandataries and substantial controllers of

the Company shall not take advantage of their positions in the company to

obtain improper benefits for themselves, their spouses, parents, children or any

other person.

Operational procedures and guidelines

The Company shall establish operational procedures and guidelines in

accordance with Article 6 hereof to guide directors, managers, employees,

mandataries and substantial controllers on how to conduct business. The

procedures and guidelines should at least contain the following matters:

1. Standards for determining whether improper benefits have been offered or
accepted.

2. Procedures for offering legitimate political donations.

3. Procedures and the standard rates for offering charitable donations or
sponsorship.

4. Rules for avoiding work-related conflicts of interests and how they should be
reported and handled.

5. Rules for keeping confidential trade secrets and sensitive business
information obtained in the ordinary course of business.

6. Regulations and procedures for dealing with suppliers, clients and business
transaction counterparties suspected of unethical conduct.

7. Handling procedures for violations of the Principles.

8. Disciplinary measures on offenders.

Training and assessment

The Company shall periodically organize training and awareness programs for

directors, managers, employees, mandataries and substantial controllers and

invite the Company’s commercial transaction counterparties so they understand

the Company’s resolve to implement ethical corporate management, the related

policies, prevention measure and the consequences of committing unethical

conduct.

The Company shall apply the policies of ethical corporate management when

creating its employee performance appraisal system and human resource

policies to establish a clear and effective reward and discipline system.

Reporting and Discipline

The company adopts a concrete whistle-blowing system which includes the

following:
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Article 23

Article 24

Article 25

Article 26

1. An appropriate reporting channel to allow company insiders and outsiders to
submit reports.

2. The dedicated personnel who are or the dedicated unit which is appointed to
handle whistle-blowing system shall report any tip involving a director or
senior manager to the independent directors or the highest manager of
Auditing office. Categories of reported misconduct shall be delineated and
standard operating procedures for the investigation of each shall be adopted.

3. Documentation and retention of case acceptance, investigation processes,
investigation results, and relevant documents.

4. Confidentiality of the identity of whistle-blowers and the content of reported
cases.

5. Measures for protecting whistle-blowers from inappropriate disciplinary
actions due to their whistle-blowing.

6. Whistle-blowing incentive measures.

Information disclosure

The Company shall disclose the status of the enforcement of their own ethical

corporate management best practice principles on their company websites,

annual reports and prospectuses.

Review and improvement of the principles

The Company shall at all times monitor the development of relevant local and

international regulations concerning ethical corporate management, and

encourage directors, managers and employees to make suggestions so as to
review and improve their ethical corporate management best practice principles
and achieve better results from implementing the principles.

Enforcement

The Principles will be implemented after adoption by resolution of the Board of

Directors, and will be delivered to the shareholders meeting for report, same as

amendment.

The Principles were enacted on March 25, 2014.

The 1% amendment was made on November 11, 2016.
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Wistron Corporation

Profit Appropriation Statement for 2016

Unit: NT$

Undistributed Surplus at the Beginning of the year 11,235,680,958
Plus(Minus):

Remeasurements of the defined benefit liability (144,903,093)

Dec_rease in unapp_roprlated earnings resulting from (1738,675)

equity-accounted investees

Changes in ownership interest of subsidiaries (3,018,187)

Share-based payment transaction 2,035,623

Net Income After Tax 2,961,100,586
Minus:

Legal Reserve (296,110,059)
Distributable Earnings 13,753,047,153

Distribution Items:

Stock Dividends to Common Shareholders (760,542,260)

Cash Dividends to Common Shareholders (3,042,169,007)| (3,802,711,267)
Undistributed Earnings at the end of the Period 9,950,335,886

Notel: Stock dividend: NT$0.3 per share.
Note2: Cash dividend: NT$1.2 per share, and the cash dividend is rounded down to the nearest
NT dollars; the amount rounded off will be credited to other income of Wistron.

Chairman: Simon Lin President: Robert Hwang Controller: Stone Shih



Appendix 8

Wistron Corporation

Articles of Incorporation

Chapter I  General Provisions

Articlel  The Company is incorporated in accordance with the provisions under the
Company Law pertaining to companies limited by shares by the name of
WISTRON CORPORATION.

Article 2 The business items of the Company are set out as follows:

CCo01110
CC01060
CC01070
CC01080
1301010
1501010
F401010
CEO01030
F401021

© oo N gk DR

10. CC01101

11. CC01030

12.JA02010

13.J101090

14. CF01011
15. CD01030

16. F218010

17.1301020
18.1301030

Manufacture of computer and peripheral equipment,
Manufacture of wire communication equipment,

Manufacture of radio communication equipment,

Manufacture of electronic components and parts,

Information technology service,

Product design service,

Import/export trading and dealer businesses,

Manufacture of optical equipment,

Import trading business of restricted radio frequency machinery,
with permission only for radio transmitters,

Manufacture of restricted radio frequency machinery, with
permission only for radio transmitters.

Electric Appliance and Audiovisual Electric Products
Manufacturing

Electric appliance and products Repairing (can only be
conducted outside Hsinchu Science Park )

Waste Disposition (can only be conducted outside Hsinchu
Science Park)

Medical equipment manufacturing

Automobiles and Parts Manufacturing (can only be conducted
outside Hsinchu Science Park )

Retail Sale of Computer Software (can only be conducted
outside Hsinchu Science Park )

Data Processing Services

Digital Information Supply Services

(1) R&D, development, design, manufacture (including module), testing and
sales of PCs, portable PCs, motherboards, servers, file-transfer protocols,
high performance multi-CPU computing systems, multimedia PCs, web

65



PCs, consumer computing systems and professional computing systems,
microprocessors, CD-ROM drivers, PDAs, tablet PCs, pocket PCs,
interface cards, and semi-manufactured, components and parts, and
related products thereof.

(2) R&D, development, design, manufacture (including module), testing and
sales of video phones and web phones, video conference equipment and
electronic  communication  apparatus, and semi-manufactured,
components and parts, and related products thereof.

(3) R&D, development, design, manufacture (including module), testing and
sales of satellite TV receivers, set-top-boxes, video-conference decoders,
and semi-manufactured, components and parts, and related products
thereof.

(4) R&D, development, design, manufacture (including module), testing and
sales of digital cameras, video CDs, Digital CDs, and semi-manufactured,
components and parts, and related products thereof.

(5) R&D, development, design, manufacture (including module), testing and
sales of radio frequency machinery (mobile phones, wireless network
cards, blue tooth module) and semi-manufactured, components and parts,
and related products thereof.

(6) Providing Integrated information systems, including software and
programming; and

(7) Import/export trading business related to the above businesses.

(8) R&D, development, design, manufacture (including module), testing and
sales of LCD TVs and other audiovisual electric products. (Can only be
conducted outside Hsinchu Science Park.)

(9) Providing repairing, cleansing and maintenance services for Electronic
Appliance and products (can only be conducted outside Hsinchu Science
Park).

(10) Recycling and Disposition and Removal of Waste Electronic Products
(can only be conducted outside Hsinchu Science Park).

(11) R&D, development, design, production, manufacture, testing and sale
of In-Vitro testing equipment / system / modules / platform,
physiological signal detection medical materials and medical information
transmission system products, semi-finished products and their
peripherals or components.

(12) Production, manufacture and sale of Various kinds of automotive
electronic products (can only be conducted outside Hsinchu Science
Park )
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Article 3

Article 4

Article 5

Chapter 11
Article 6

Article 6-1

The Company may engage in external guarantees to meet business or investment
needs.

The total investment amount by the Company is exempt from the cap amount
provided in Section 13 of the ROC Company Law.

The head office of the Company is located in the Hsinchu Science Park.
Subject to the approval by board of directors and governmental authority, the
Company may set up branch offices at other proper location(s).

Share Capital

The total capital amount of the Company is Forty Billion New Taiwan Dollars

(NTD 40,000,000,000), which is divided into Four Billion (4,000,000,000)

shares with a par value of Ten New Taiwan Dollars (NTD10) each and will be

issued as common shares or preferred shares by installments by the Board of

Directors.

An amount of Two Billion New Taiwan Dollars (NTD2,000,000,000) from the

above total capital amount divided into 200,000,000 shares with a par value of

Ten New Taiwan Dollars each (NTD10) are reserved for the issuance of

employee stock options.

The Company issues registered Series A preferred shares with the rights,

obligations and issuing terms set forth as follows:

1. The interest rate of the preferred shares dividend may not exceed 3.5% per
annum.

2. The dividend of the preferred shares shall be made according to the offering
price and offering days. Upon acknowledgement of the financial statements
of the previous fiscal year at the annual general shareholders meeting and
resolution to distribute earnings, the dividend will be made in cash in one
payment. The BOD is authorized to determine the base ex-dividend date of
the preferred share annual dividend.

3. The earnings of the Company (if any), upon annual closing will first be
made to pay for taxes, make up for losses, appropriate to statutory reserves
and special reserves. The remaining amount will then first be paid to
distribute the preferred share dividend in priority over the dividends of the
other shares.

4. Except for receiving a dividend as set out in Paragraph 1 herein,
shareholders of Series A preferred shares may not participate in the
distribution of common share earnings and capital surplus in the form of
cash and capital injection.
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Article 7

Article 8

10.

11.

In the event of no earnings or insufficient earnings to distribute the entire
dividend of Series A preferred shares upon annual closing, the undistributed
or under-distributed dividend of the year shall be accrued at a compound
dividend interest rate until the year with earnings. The amount short will
receive full payment with first seniority. However, the undistributed accrued
preferred share dividend shall be paid out in full upon expiration of the
offering terms.

The offering terms of the preferred shares shall not exceed 5 years. Upon
expiration of the term, the total shares will be redeemed at the offering price
together with the accrued dividend unpaid. In the event of matters beyond
control or force majeure that the Company is unable to redeem all or part of
the preferred shares, the rights of the shares unredeemed shall remain the
same as set forth in the issuing terms until the Company makes a total
redemption. The dividend will be calculated at the same interest rate for the
extended term.

The preferred shares may not be converted to common shares during the
term.

The preferred shares has seniority claim to the remaining assets of the
company over common shares and the other preferred shares that are issued
after the shares herein, however the amount shall not exceed the offering
amount.

The shareholders of the preferred shares have voting rights and election
rights at the common shareholders’ meetings, and also the right to be elected
as directors.

When the Company issues new share to raise cash capital, the preferred
shareholders have senior stock option of the new shares as the common
shareholders.

The BOD is authorized to govern the other related matters pursuant to the
“Rules on Issuance of Series A Preferred Shares” prescribed at the time of
offering.

The shares in the Company will be registered shares duly certified by three or
more of the directors of the Company, numbered and issued in accordance with
laws.

The Company may adopt book-entry transfer of shares, instead of issuance of
share certificates; as well as with other securities of the Company.

The shareholders’ meetings of the Company are divided into ordinary
shareholders’ meetings and extraordinary shareholders’ meetings. The ordinary
shareholders’ meeting will be duly convened within six months following the

68



Chapter 111
Article 9

Article 10

close of each fiscal year in accordance with laws and regulations. Extraordinary
shareholders’ meetings may be convened when necessary in accordance with
laws and regulations.

Shareholders’ Meeting

Except as otherwise provided by the relevant laws or regulations, shareholders
may take action on a matter at a shareholders’ meeting if a quorum of fifty
percent (50%) or more of the outstanding shares of the Company exists. If a
quorum exists, action on a matter is approved if more than fifty percent (50%)
votes being represented at a meeting favor the action.

A shareholder unable to personally attend the shareholders’ meeting for
whatever cause may vote by proxy with a duly executed appointment form
issued by the Company specifying the authorized powers. Except for securities
trust enterprises or stock agencies approved by the competent authority, a person
who acts as a proxy for two or more shareholders are not entitled to vote when
the represented shares exceed three percent (3%) of the total voting rights of the
outstanding shares of the Company.

An appointment of a proxy is effective when a signed appointment form is
received by the Company five (5) days before the shareholders’ meeting. Where
two or more appointment forms are received by the Company, the first one
received shall govern.

According to regulatory requirements, shareholders may also vote via an
electronic voting system, and those who do shall be deemed as attending the
shareholders’ meeting in person; electronic voting shall be conducted in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations.

Chapter IV Directors and Audit Committee

Article 11

Article 11-1

The Company will have a Board of Directors consisting of seven to nine
Directors, who will be elected by the shareholders’ meeting from the director
candidate list via the candidate nomination system. Each Director will serve an
office term of three years and may be re-elected. The Company may purchase
liability insurance for the Directors to protect them against potential liabilities
arising from their exercising of Director duties.

The compensation or transportation allowance paid to the Directors shall be
determined by the Board of Directors’ resolution according to the industry
standard, no matter whether the Company has profit or suffered loss.

The Board of Directors shall be composed of at least 3 Independent Directors,
who will be elected at the shareholders’ meeting from the independent director
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Article 11-2

Article 12

Article 12-1

Article 13

Chapter V
Article 14

Chapter VI
Article 15

candidate list via the candidate nomination system. With respect to the
Independent Director’s profession, holding shares, work restriction, nomination
and election method and other matters, all should be preceded by relevant
regulations set by the securities authority.

Pursuant to Article 14-4 of the Securities and Exchange Act, the Company shall
establish an Audit Committee. The Audit Committee shall be composed of the
entire number of Independent Directors. The authority of the Audit Committee
and the other compliance issues shall be made according to the Company Act,
the Securities and Exchange Act, other relevant laws and regulations and the
company by laws.

The chairperson of the Board of Directors represents the Company and is
elected from among the directors by a majority of the directors present at a
meeting with an attendance of two-thirds of the directors. The company may
create an audit committee, nominating committee, remuneration committee or
other functional committees.

Each director shall be notified at least seven days in advance of the reasons for
calling a Board of Directors meeting or Audit Committee meeting. In emergency
circumstances, however, a meeting may be called on shorter notice.

The aforesaid meeting notice may be prepared in either written or electronic
format.

In case the chairperson of the Board of Directors is on leave or unable to
represent the Company or perform his or her functions for whatever cause, he or
she may appoint another director as proxy in accordance with Section 208 of the
Company Law. If that director is not able to attend a meeting in person, he or
she may appoint another director as proxy. A director may serve as proxy for
only one other director.

Managerial Officers

The Company will have one chief executive officer, one general manager and a
number of vice general managers, whose appointment, discharge and
remuneration will be determined in accordance with Section 29 of the Company
Law. Subject to the authority prescribed by the board of directors, the officers
shall be empowered to manage the operation of the company and to sign
relevant business documents for the company.

Accounting

The Board of Directors will prepare the documents set forth below after the end
of the fiscal year for submission to the shareholders’ meeting for approval.
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Article 16

Article 16-1

1. Business report;
2. Financial statements;
3. Profit distribution proposal or loss making-up proposal.

If the Company has profit as a result of the yearly accounting closing, (profit
means the profit before tax, excluding the amounts of employees’ and directors’
compensation) such profit will be distributed in accordance with the following,
once the Company’s accumulated losses shall have been covered.

1. No less than five percent (5%) of profit as employees’ compensation. The
Company may distributed in the form of shares or in cash, and the
qualification requirements of employees, including the employees of
subsidiaries of the company meeting certain specific requirements, entitled
to receive compensation shall be determined-by the Board of Directors;

2. No more than one percent (1%) of profit as the compensation in cash to the
Directors.

If the Company has net profit as a result of the yearly accounting closing, the
Company shall first offset its losses in precious years and set aside a legal
capital reserve at ten percent (10%) of the net profit, until the accumulated legal
capital reserve has equaled the total capital of the Company; then set aside
special capital reserve in accordance with relevant laws or regulations or as
requested by the authorities in charge, then appropriate not less than ten percent
(10%) of the remaining balance plus undistributed earnings in begin of period
are available for distribution as dividends to shareholders. The board of directors
may propose the distribution for approval in the shareholders’ meeting.

Chapter VIl Supplementary Provisions

Article 17

Article 18

Article 19

In consideration that the Company is in a capital and technology-intensive
industry and in consideration of the Company’s expansion and for its continual
and steady growth, a long-term investment plan needs to be adopted, therefore,
the Company adopts the residual dividend policy as its dividend policy.
Dividends paid by cash shall not be less than ten percent (10%) of the total
dividends.

Matters not prescribed under the Articles of Incorporation shall be in accordance
with the Company Law and the relevant rules and regulations.

The Procedure was enacted on May 23, 2001.

The 1% amendment was made on June 16, 2001.

The 2" amendment was made on November 3, 2001.
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The 3 amendment was made on December 17, 2001.
The 4™ amendment was made on June 7, 2002.
The 5" amendment was made on June 17, 2003.
The 6" amendment was made on June 16, 2004.
The 7" amendment was made on June 16, 2004.
The 8" amendment was made on June 9, 2005.
The 9" amendment was made on June 8, 2006.
The 10" amendment was made on June 21, 2007.
The 11™ amendment was made on June 25, 2008.
The 12" amendment was made on June 23, 2009.
The 13" amendment was made on June 18, 2010.
The 14™ amendment was made on June 22, 2011.
The 15™ amendment was made on June 21, 2012.
The 16™ amendment was made on June 14, 2013.
The 17" amendment was made on June 11, 2014.
The 18" amendment was made on June 26, 2015.
The 19" amendment was made on June 15, 2016.
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Appendix 9

Comparison between Original and Amendments to
“Procedures of Asset Acquisition and Disposal”

Items Original Version Amendment Version Reason
Article 5 | Procedures of Ratification and Procedures of Ratification and To comply with
Decision for the Acquisition or Decision for the Acquisition or the Regulation
Disposition of Assets Disposition of Assets update.
2. Amount and Level of License 2. Amount and Level of License
In-charge department of the In-charge department of the
Company shall decide within its Company shall decide within its
authority on the acquisition and authority on the acquisition and
disposition of assets in the disposition of assets in the
following situations, provided, following situations, provided,
however, that matters governed by however, that matters governed by
Article 185 of the Company Law Article 185 of the Company Law
shall be approved at the shall be approved at the
shareholders’ meeting in advance: shareholders’ meeting in advance:
(4)The acquisition or disposition of | (4)The acquisition or disposition of
derivative products shall be derivative products shall be
authorized to relevant personnel authorized to relevant personnel
in accordance with the “Rules in accordance with the “Rules
and Procedures of Derivative and Procedures of Derivative
Transactions”, and shall report Transactions”, and shall report
to the meeting of Board of to the soonest meeting of Board
Directors at least quarterly. of Directors at-least-guarterly.
Article 6 | Procedures of Announcement and Procedures of Announcement and To comply with
Filing Filing the Regulation

1.The acquisition or disposition of
the Company’s assets, provided
below, shall be announced and filed
to the FSC’s designated website in
accordance to its nature and the
stipulated form, within two days
commencing immediately of its
occurrence, with the relevant data
and information:

(1)Purchase and disposition of real
estate from a related party, or
purchase or disposition of assets
other than real property from or
to a related party where the
transaction amount reaches 20
percent or more of paid-in
capital, 10 percent or more of
the Company’s total assets
certified by public accountant,

1.The acquisition or disposition of
the Company’s assets, provided
below, shall be announced and filed
to the FSC’s designated website in
accordance to its nature and the
stipulated form, within two days
commencing immediately of its
occurrence, with the relevant data
and information:

(1)Purchase and disposition of real
estate from a related party, or
purchase or disposition of assets
other than real property from or
to a related party where the
transaction amount reaches 20
percent or more of paid-in
capital, 10 percent or more of
the Company’s total assets
certified by public accountant,

update.
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Items

Original Version

Amendment Version

Reason

Article 6

or NT$300 million or more;
provided, this shall not apply to
trading of government bonds or
bonds under repurchase and
resale agreements, or
subscription or redemption of
domestic money market funds.

(4)Except for asset transactions

provided in the preceding four

three items, or an investment in

the mainland China area, where
the transaction amount reaching

20% of the Company’s paid-in

capital or in exceeds NT$300

million; however, not included
otherwise provided below:

(a)purchase and sale of
government bonds,

(b)purchase and sale of bonds
with put or call conditions, or
subscription or redemption of
domestic money market
funds,

(c)equipment that are
categorized as assets
acquired or disposed for
business use, the transaction
counterparty is not a related
party, and the transaction
amount has not exceeded
NT$500 million,

(d) real estate acquired by the
Company by the ways of
mandating others to build on
its land, engaging others to
build on rented land, joint
cooperatively building with
others to split the units,
cooperatively building with
others to acquire the
proportion of profits, or
cooperatively building with
others to separately sell the
units, the transaction amount
has not exceeded NT$500
million (the calculation basis
is based on the anticipated
amount invested by the

4

()

or NT$300 million or more;
provided, this shall not apply to
trading of government bonds or
bonds under repurchase and
resale agreements, or
subscription or repurchase
redemption of demestic money
market funds issued by
domestic securities investment
trust enterprises.

Equipment that are categorized
as assets acquired or disposed
for business use, the transaction
counterparty is not a related
party, and the transaction
amount has reached net-
exceeded NT$1 billion 560-
million_ or more.

Real estate acquired by the
Company by the ways of
mandating others to build on its
land, engaging others to build
on rented land, joint
cooperatively building with
others to split the units,
cooperatively building with
others to acquire the proportion
of profits, or cooperatively
building with others to
separately sell the units, the
transaction amount which the
anticipated amount invested by
the Company has ret exceeded
NT$500 million {thecalculation-
amount invested by the
Company}

(64)Except for asset transactions

provided in the preceding five
three items, or an investment in
the mainland China area, where
the transaction amount reaching
20% of the Company’s paid-in
capital or in exceeds NT$300
million; however, not included
otherwise provided below:
(a)purchase and sale of
government bonds,

To comply with
the Regulation
update.
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Items

Original Version

Amendment \ersion

Reason

Article 6

Company).

5. Where any item required to be
placed into a public announcement
pursuant to these provisions is
incorrect or not placed in the
announcement and it is required to
be supplemented, the whole
announcement shall be remade and

placed into a public announcement.

(b) purchase and sale of bonds
with put or call conditions, or
subscription or repurchase-
redemption of demestic
money market funds issued
by domestic securities
investment trust enterprises.

{e)equipment-that-are-

5. Where any item required to be
placed into a public announcement
pursuant to these provisions is
incorrect or not placed in the
announcement and it is required to
be supplemented, the whole
announcement shall be remade and
placed into a public announcement
within two days counting
inclusively from the date of
knowing of such error or omission.

To comply with
the Regulation
update.

Article 10

Appraisal Report from Professional
Appraisal Institutions
In acquiring or disposing of real

Appraisal Report from Professional
Appraisal Institutions
In acquiring or disposing of real

To comply with
the Regulation
update.
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Items Original Version Amendment Version Reason
Article 10 | estates or equipment by the estates or equipment by the To comply with
Company, unless otherwise Company, unless otherwise the Regulation
transacting with a government transacting with a government update.
institution, commissioning others to | agency #nstitution, commissioning
build on its own land, leased land by | others to build on its own land,
appointing a constructor, or acquiring | leased land by appointing a
or disposing the equipment for constructor, or acquiring or disposing
business use, and the transaction the equipment for business use, and
amount reaches 20% of the the transaction amount reaches 20%
Company’s paid-in capital or of the Company’s paid-in capital or
exceeds NT$300 million, the exceeds NT$300 million, the
Company shall, prior to the date of Company shall, prior to the date of
occurrence of the event, obtain an occurrence of the event, obtain an
appraisal report issued by a appraisal report issued by a
professional appraisal institutions, professional appraisal institutions,
and comply with the following and comply with the following
provisions: provisions:
Article 11 | Certified Accountant’s Opinions Certified Accountant’s Opinions To comply with

1.For a public company acquiring or
disposing of marketable securities,
where the transaction amount
reaches 20% of the Company’s
paid-in capital or exceeds NT$300
million, an accountant shall, prior
to the date of occurrence of the
event, be retained for opinions on
the reasonableness of the
transaction price. If the accountant
needs to use the report of an expert
as evidence, the accountant shall
do so in accordance with the
provisions of Statement of
Auditing Standards No. 20
published by the ROC Accounting
Research and Development
Foundation (ARDF). This
requirement does not apply to the
securities which are publicly
quoted in an active market or
otherwise provided by the
regulations of FSC.
According to FSC letter No.
09600014631 and the exception
rule provided in the first paragraph
of Article 10 the regulations
Governing the Acquisition and
Disposition of Assets by Public
Company. Following times the

1.For a public company acquiring or
disposing of marketable securities,
where the transaction amount
reaches 20% of the Company’s
paid-in capital or exceeds NT$300
million, an accountant shall, prior
to the date of occurrence of the
event, be retained for opinions on
the reasonableness of the
transaction price. If the accountant
needs to use the report of an expert

as evidence, the accountant shall do

so in accordance with the
provisions of Statement of
Auditing Standards No. 20
published by the ROC Accounting
Research and Development
Foundation (ARDF). This
requirement does not apply to the
securities which are publicly
quoted in an active market or
otherwise provided by the
regulations of FSC.

According to FSC letter No.
105004450409600014631 and the
exception rule provided in the first
paragraph of Article 10 the
regulations Governing the
Acquisition and Disposition of
Assets by Public Company.

the Regulation
update.
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Items

Original Version

Amendment Version

Reason

Article 11

Company is to proceed free from

the aforementioned accountant

checking procedure for acquiring

or disposing securities.

(1)Securities acquired by the initial
cash offering.

(2)Participation in subscription to
an issue of securities issued at
face value by an issuing
company.

(3)Participation in subscription to
securities issued by a 100%
owned subsidiary that is
carrying out a cash capital
increase.

(4)Securities listed and traded on
the Taiwan Stock Exchange or
the Taipei Exchange or
emerging stocks.

(5)Government bonds, or bonds
under repurchase or reverse
purchase agreements.

(6)Domestic or foreign funds.

(7)TWSE or TPEX listed stocks
acquired or disposed of in
accordance with the TWSE or
TPEX rules governing the
purchase of listed securities by
reverse auction or rules
governing the auction of listed
securities.

(8)Securities acquired by seasoned
equity offerings.

(9)Purchase funds before their
establishments according to
Section 1, Article 11, Securities
Investment trust and Consulting
Act and FSC letter 0930005349
(issued Nov. 01, 2004).

(10)Purchase or call domestic
privately placed funds, the
investing scope of which is the
same as that of publicly placed
funds. This requirement does
not apply to the occasion that
the investing strategy, except
securities credit trading and
open position of
securities-related products is

Following times the Company is to

proceed free from the

aforementioned accountant

checking procedure for acquiring

or disposing securities.

(1)Securities acquired through cash
contribution in an incorporation
by promotion or by public the-
nitial-cash offering in
accordance with the Company
Act, with the further
requirement that the rights
represented by the acquired
securities be commensurate with
the proportion of capital
contributed.

(2)Participation in subscription to
an issue of securities issued at
face value by an issuing
company.

(3)Participation in subscription to
securities issued by a 100%
owned subsidiary that is
carrying out a cash capital
increase.

(4)Securities listed and traded on
the Taiwan Stock Exchange or
the Taipei Exchange or
emerging stocks.

(5)Government bonds, or bonds
under repurchase or reverse
purchase agreements.

(6)Onshore or offshore publicly
offered funds.-Bemestic-or
foreign funds.

(7)TWSE or TPEX listed stocks
acquired or disposed of in
accordance with the TWSE or
TPEX rules governing the
purchase of listed securities by
reverse auction or rules
governing the auction of listed
securities.

(8)Participation in subscription to
shares issued by a public
company for a cash capital
increase or domestic
subscription to corporate bonds
(including financial debentures),

To comply with
the Regulation
update.

77




Items

Original Version

Amendment \ersion

Reason

Article 11

provided in the trust contract.

2.In acquiring or disposing

membership certificate or
intangible assets by a public
company, and the transaction
amount reaching 20% of the
Company’s paid-in capital or in
exceeding NT$300 million, except
in transactions with a government
institution, an accountant shall,
prior to the date of occurrence of
the event, be retained to express
opinions on the reasonableness of
the transaction price, and the
accountant shall handle the matter
pursuant to Article 13 of the
statements of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 20 promulgated by
Accounting Research and
Development Foundation.

with the further requirement that
the securities acquired are not
privately placed securities.

Securities-acguired-by seasoned-
(9)Subscription to a domestic
privately placed fund before the
establishment of the fund in
accordance with Article 11,
paragraph 1 of the Securities
Investment Trust and
Consulting Act, or subscription
to or redemption of a domestic
privately placed fund, provided
that the trust agreement for the
fund specifies an investment
strategy in which, aside from
securities margin transactions
and open positions held in
securities-related products, the
investment scope of the
remaining portion is the same as
that of a publicly offered fund.-
Purchase funds-before their-

2.In acquiring or disposing

membership certificate or
intangible assets by a public
company, and the transaction
amount reaching 20% of the
Company’s paid-in capital or in
exceeding NT$300 million, except
in transactions with a government
agency #astituytion, an accountant

To comply with
the Regulation
update.
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Items Original Version Amendment Version Reason

Article 11 shall, prior to the date of To comply with

occurrence of the event, be retained |the Regulation
to express opinions on the update.
reasonableness of the transaction

price, and the accountant shall

handle the matter pursuant to

Article 13 of the statements of

Financial Accounting Standards

No. 20 promulgated by Accounting

Research and Development

Foundation.

Article 12 | Related Party Transactions Related Party Transactions To comply with
............ the Regulation
The Company must submit the The Company must submit the update.
information provided below to the information provided below to the
Board of Directors for approval, Board of Directors for approval,
upon first obtaining a consent from upon first obtaining a consent from
the Audit Committee, before its the Audit Committee, before its
execution of the purchase or execution of the purchase or
disposition of real estate from related | disposition of real estate from related
parties, or acquisition or disposition | parties, or acquisition or disposition
of assets other than real property of assets other than real property
from or to related parties where the | from or to related parties where the
transaction amount reaches 20 transaction amount reaches 20
percent or more of paid-in capital, 10 | percent or more of paid-in capital, 10
percent or more of the Company’s percent or more of the Company’s
total assets, or NT$300 million or total assets, or NT$300 million or
more, except in trading of more, except in trading of
government bonds or bonds under government bonds or bonds under
repurchase and resale agreements, or | repurchase and resale agreements, or
subscription or redemption of subscription or repurchase-
domestic money market funds. The | redemption of domestic money
Company may not proceed to enter market funds issued by domestic
into a transaction contract or make a | securities investment trust
payment until receiving approval as | enterprises. The Company may not
discussed herein from the Board of proceed to enter into a transaction
Directors, including. contract or make a payment until
...... receiving approval as discussed

herein from the Board of Directors,
including.
Avrticle 20 | Mergers, Splits, Acquisitions and Mergers, Splits, Acquisitions and To comply with

Shares Transference

Prior to convening the Board of
Directors for a resolution, the
Company engaging in a merger, split,
acquisition or share transference
shall retain accountants, attorneys or

Shares Transference

Prior to convening the Board of
Directors for a resolution, the
Company engaging in a merger, split,
acquisition or share transference
shall retain accountants, attorneys or

the Regulation
update.
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Items Original Version Amendment Version Reason
Article 20 | securities underwriters for opinions | securities underwriters for opinions | To comply with
on the reasonableness of the share on the reasonableness of the share the Regulation
conversion rates, acquisition price or | conversion rates, acquisition price or |update.
the cash or other assets distributed to | the cash or other assets distributed to
shareholders, and submit the shareholders, and submit the
opinions at the shareholders’ meeting | opinions at the shareholders’ meeting
for discussion and approval. for discussion and approval.
However, the requirement of
obtaining an aforesaid opinion on
reasonableness issued by an expert
may be exempted in the case of a
merger by the Company of a
subsidiary in which it directly or
indirectly holds 100 percent of the
issued shares or authorized capital,
and in the case of a merger between
subsidiaries in which the Company
directly or indirectly holds 100
percent of the respective subsidiaries’
issued shares or authorized capital.
Article29 | ...... | ... Correspondence
The 8™ amendment was made on The 8™ amendment was made on to the
June 11, 2014. June 11, 2014. amendment
The 9™ amendment was made on date.

June 14, 2017.
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Appendix 10

Article 1

Article 2

Article 3

Wistron Corporation

Procedures of Asset Acquisition and Disposal

Purpose and Legal Basis

To conform to laws and decrees and enhance the management of the Company’s
“Procedures of Asset Acquisition and Disposal,” these procedures are amended
in accordance with Article 36-1 of the Securities and Exchange Act and
Financial Supervisory Commission (referred to as “FSC”).

The term “assets” as used in the Procedures including:

1. Investments in stocks, government bonds, corporate bonds, financial bonds,
securities representing interest in a fund, depositary receipts, warrants,
investment funds, underlying asset bonds, etc.

2. Real estate (including land, houses and buildings, investment property, rights
to use land, and construction enterprise inventory) and equipment.

3. Membership certificates.

4. Intangible assets, such as patent right, copyright, trademark right, franchise,
etc.

5. Derivative products.

6. Assets acquired or disposed by mergers, splits, acquisition or shares
transference in accordance to laws.

7. Other important assets.

Definitions

1. “Derivative Products” means forward contracts, options, futures, leverage
contracts, swaps, with worth derived from assets, interest rates, foreign
exchange rates, indexes or other interests, and the hybrid contracts consisted
by the above products, etc.

2. “Assets Acquired or Disposed by Mergers, Splits, Acquisition or Shares

Transference Pursuant to Laws” means assets acquired or disposed by
mergers, splits, acquisition or shares transference pursuant to Enterprise
Merger and Acquisition Law, Financial Holding Companies Law, Financial
Institutions Merger Law or other laws or share transference from other
companies (hereinafter referred to as “share transference”) by issuing new
shares pursuant to the eight paragraph of Article 156 of Company Law.
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Article 4

3. The term “related party” and “subsidiary company” shall be defined as
stated in the “Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
Securities Issuers.”

4. The term “the date of the occurrence of the event” as used in these
procedures, in principle means the date of contract signing, the date of
payment, the date of consignment trading, the date of transfer, the date of
resolution of Board of Directors or other date which can confirm the trading
counterparty and trading amount (whichever is earlier). If the Company is
engaged in investments which must be approved by a competent authority, it
shall mean the above-said date of receiving the approval letter from the
competent authority, whichever is earlier.

5. The term “professional appraiser” means a real estate appraiser or other
according to laws engaged in real estate, equipment valuation business.

6. The term “within one year” as used in these procedures, means dating back
for one year from the date of acquiring or disposing this asset (the
announced period is exempt from counting in again).

7. The term “the most recent financial statement” as used in these procedures,
means the financial statement publicly audited or reviewed by an accountant
in accordance with applicable laws before the Company acquires or disposes
assets.

Procedures of Evaluation and Operation for the Acquisition or Disposition of

Assets

1. Acquisition or Disposition of Securities
(1) For securities acquired or disposed on a centralized exchange market or

OTC exchange, the operating department shall submit items such as the
reasons for the proposed acquisition or disposition, targeted assets, and
price reference, etc. to the in-charge department for the decision.

(2) For securities not acquired or disposed on a centralized exchange market
or OTC exchange, the operating department shall submit items such as
the reasons for the proposed acquisition or disposition, targeted assets,
trading counterparties, price of transfer, receipt and payment terms, and
price reference, etc. to the in-charge department for the decision.

2. For acquisition or disposition of real estates, equipment, membership
certificates, intangible assets, and assets acquired or disposed by mergers,
splits, acquisition or shares transference in accordance to laws, the operating
department shall submit items such as the reasons for the proposed
acquisition or disposition, targeted assets, trading counterparties, price of
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transfer, receipt and payment terms, and price reference, etc. to the in-charge
department for the decision.

3. For evaluation of derivative products, the financial manager shall hold
periodic meetings with related persons to examine operational strategies and
performances. In principle, trading positions and performances shall be
reported to the chief fund manager every 2 weeks, and reported to the
highest supervisor of financial department monthly and reported to the
Chairman of BOD seasonally.

4. As to related operations for acquisition or disposition of assets, they are all
processed in accordance with the Company’s relevant regulations for the
internal control system.

Article5  Procedures of Ratification and Decision for the Acquisition or Disposition of
Assets
1. Manner and the Reference Basis for the Decision on Price

(1) For securities purchased and sold on a centralized exchange market or
OTC exchange, the price shall be decided by the market price at the time
of the transaction. For securities not acquired or disposed on a
centralized exchange market or OTC exchange, the price shall be
determined by reference to net value per share, profitability, and future
development potential, in addition, the transaction price at the time shall
also be referenced.

(2) The acquisition or disposition of real estate and equipment shall be
carried out by price comparison, price negotiation, or bidding. As to the
price of real estate, it shall be determined by reference to the announced
present value, appraised present value, and actual transaction price in the
vicinity.

(3) For the acquisition or disposition of membership certificates, the price
shall be integrally evaluated by reference to future anticipated
added-value and produced benefit.

(4) For the acquisition or disposition of intangible assets such as patent rights,
copyrights, trademark rights, and franchises, the price shall be entirely
determined by reference to elements such as future anticipated profit,
levels of technology development and innovation, legally protected
conditions, circumstances of license and implementation, or production
cost or implementation cost; in addition, the relevant elements of right
owners and licensees shall also be integrally referred.

2. Amount and Level of License
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In-charge department of the Company shall decide within its authority on the
acquisition and disposition of assets in the following situations, provided,
however, that matters governed by Article 185 of the Company Law shall be
approved at the shareholders’ meeting in advance:

(1) Unless otherwise provided below, the acquisition or disposition of
securities shall be approved by the Board of Directors before its
execution:

(@) The chairman of the board is authorized by the Board of Directors to
decide and execute a project that amount is not more than NT$300
million, the executed project will be reported to the Board of
Directors thereafter.

(b) For the acquisition or disposition of securities purchased and sold on
the centralized exchange market or OTC exchange, the chairman of
the board is authorized by the Board of Directors to decide and
execute a project that amount is not more than NT$300 million, the
executed project will be reported to the Board of Directors thereafter.
However, for related party transactions subject to the Article 12 of
these procedures, the provisions of Article 12 shall prevail.

(c) Short-term idle funds invested in short-term securities such as
domestic government bonds, domestic bond funds, financial bonds,
American government bond and oversea bond fund with good credit
rating, domestic money market funds, whereby the Director of
Finance/the finance manager is authorized to execute for each single
transaction or the daily total amount not exceeding NT$1 billion; the
approval of vice president of finance/CFO is required for amounts
between NT$ 1 and 2 billion; and the approval of the chairman of the
board is required for amount exceeding NT$ 2 billion.

(2) The acquisition or disposition of real estate shall be approved by the
Board of Directors before its execution, except that the chairman of the
board is authorized by the Board of Directors to execute a project that is
not more than NT$300 million, and it will be reported to the Board of
Directors thereafter. However, the acquisition or disposition of real
property to a related party, is not in the scope of this authorization, but
shall apply the provisions of Article 12 paragraph 2.

(3) Acquisition or disposition of the Company and its subsidiary equipment
used for operating purposes, to authorize the Chairman of the Board of
Directors or its authorized personnel decisions NT$300 million, and
afterwards would then be sent the most recent of the Board for
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ratification. Otherwise, the acquisition or disposition of equipment; for
any projects the amount is more than NT$300 million, must be approved
by the Board of Directors, the chairman of the Board or his authorized
officers decides for other projects before its executions.

(4) The acquisition or disposition of derivative products shall be authorized
to relevant personnel in accordance with the “Rules and Procedures of
Derivative Transactions”, and shall report to the meeting of Board of
Directors at least quarterly.

Operating Department
The finance department is the operating department for securities and
derivative product investments; the using department and the relevant
in-charge department are the operating departments for investments in real
estate, equipment, intangible assets, membership certificate and assets
acquired or disposed by mergers, splits, acquisition or shares transference in
accordance to laws.

Article 6 Procedures of Announcement and Filing

1.

The acquisition or disposition of the Company’s assets, provided below,

shall be announced and filed to the FSC’s designated website in accordance

to its nature and the stipulated form, within two days commencing
immediately of its occurrence, with the relevant data and information:

(1) Purchase and disposition of real estate from a related party, or purchase
or disposition of assets other than real property from or to a related party
where the transaction amount reaches 20 percent or more of paid-in
capital, 10 percent or more of the Company’s total assets certified by
public accountant, or NT$300 million or more; provided, this shall not
apply to trading of government bonds or bonds under repurchase and
resale agreements, or subscription or redemption of domestic money
market funds.

(2) Proceeding mergers, splits, acquisition or shares transference,

(3) Engaging in derivative products transactions and the loss reaching the
upper limit loss amount of the total or individual contract prescribed
in procedures,

(4) Except for asset transactions provided in the preceding feur three items,
or an investment in the mainland China area, where the transaction
amount reaching 20% of the Company’s paid-in capital or in exceeds
NT$300 million; however, not included otherwise provided below:

(@) purchase and sale of government bonds,
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(b) purchase and sale of bonds with put or call conditions, or
subscription or redemption of domestic money market funds,

(c) equipment that are categorized as assets acquired or disposed for
business use, the transaction counterparty is not a related party, and
the transaction amount has not exceeded NT$500 million,

(d) real estate acquired by the Company by the ways of mandating
others to build on its land, engaging others to build on rented land,
joint cooperatively building with others to split the units,
cooperatively building with others to acquire the proportion of profits,
or cooperatively building with others to separately sell the units, the
transaction amount has not exceeded NT$500 million (the
calculation basis is based on the anticipated amount invested by the
Company).

The transaction mounts in the preceding paragraph are calculated in

accordance to the methods provided herein below:

(1) each single transaction amount,

(2) the transaction amount accumulated within one year with the same
counterparty in the acquisition or disposition of the targeted assets with
the same nature,

(3) the amount accumulated (the amounts for acquisition and disposition are
separately accumulated) within one year of the acquisition or disposition
of the same real estate in a development plan,

(4) the amount accumulated (the amounts for acquisition and disposition are
separately accumulated) within one year in the acquisition or disposition
of the same securities.

One year period in sub-section is dating back from the date of the concerned

transaction; the announced period is exempt from counting in again.

The Company shall monthly enter into the transaction situations of the

derivative products engaged by it and its subsidiaries not categorized as

domestic public companies up to the end of the previous month in
accordance to the stipulated form to the FSC’s designated website for filing
information before the 10th of each month.

. Where any item required to be placed into a public announcement pursuant

to these provisions is incorrect or not placed in the announcement and it is

required to be supplemented, the whole announcement shall be remade and
placed into a public announcement.

Unless otherwise provided by other laws, the Company’s acquisition or

disposition of assets shall keep in reserve the relevant contracts, meeting
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minutes, registry, appraisal report, and the opinion books by accountants,

attorneys or security underwriters for at least 5 years.

7. After announcing and filing the transaction in accordance with the
provisions, provided that one of the following conditions exist, the Company
shall announce and file the relevant data and information to the FSC’s
designated website within two days commencing immediately after its
occurrence:

(1) Where the executed relevant contracts of the original transaction have
been changed, terminated or ceased.

(2) Where mergers, splits, acquisition or share transfers have not been
completed in accordance to the anticipated timeframe set in the
contracts.

(3) Change to the originally publicly announced and reported information.

Article 7 Scope and Amount of Acquisition or Disposition of Assets
1. Apart from acquisition of assets for business use, the Company may invest
or purchase real estate and securities for non-business use, the limitations on
amounts are set forth as follows:

(1) Total investment in real estate for non-business use shall not exceed 40%
of the equity attributable to owners of the Company and long-term
liabilities of the Company as the most recent financial report certified or
reviewed by the accountant.

(2) Total investment in securities shall not exceed 200% of the equity
attributable to owners of the Company as the most recent financial report
certified or reviewed by the accountant.

(3) Investment in a single security shall not exceed 40% of the equity
attributable to owners of the Company as the most recent financial report
certified or reviewed by the accountant.

2. As to the Company subsidiaries, the limitations on amounts of acquisition or
disposition of assets shall not violate rules provided herein below:

(1) Real estate shall not be purchased for non-business use.

(2) Total investment in securities shall not exceed the equity attributable to
owners of the Company as the most recent financial report certified or
reviewed by the accountant.

(3) Investment in a single security shall not exceed 20% of the equity
attributable to owners of the Company as the most recent financial report
certified or reviewed by the accountant.
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Article 8

Article 9

Article 10

Control Management Process for Subsidiaries’ Acquisition or Disposition of

Assets

1. For the acquisition or disposition of assets by subsidiaries invested by the
Company, the “Procedures for Acquiring or Disposing of Assets” shall be
enacted in accordance to regulations, and after the approval of the Board of
Directors of the subsidiaries, shall be submitted to each supervisor and
reported to the shareholders’ meeting for approval. After approval at the
shareholders’ meeting, it shall be filed to the Board of Director of the
Company. The same procedures shall apply with any amendment.

2. For situations in which the acquisition or disposition of assets by
subsidiaries not categorized as domestic public companies reaches the
standards of announcement and filing set forth herein, it shall be announced
and filed by the Company with copies to relevant authorities-in-charge in
accordance to procedures set forth herein.

3. The Company’s paid-in capital or total assets, certified by public accountants,
shall be the standard for determining whether or not a subsidiary is subject to
Article 6, paragraph 1, requiring a public announcement and regulatory
filing in the event the type of transaction specified therein reaches 20 percent
of paid-in capital or 10 percent of the total assets.

4. The Company shall supervise subsidiaries’ compliance with the “Procedures
of Assets Acquisition and Disposition”, and monitor their implementation.

Punishment for Violation of the Procedure

When the Company’s employees or personnel violate the Procedure, they will

be punished according to the “Personnel Administration Regulation”.

Appraisal Report from Professional Appraisal Institutions
In acquiring or disposing of real estates or equipment by the Company, unless
otherwise transacting with a government institution, commissioning others to
build on its own land, leased land by appointing a constructor, or acquiring or
disposing the equipment for business use, and the transaction amount reaches
20% of the Company’s paid-in capital or exceeds NT$300 million, the Company
shall, prior to the date of occurrence of the event, obtain an appraisal report
issued by a professional appraisal institutions, and comply with the following
provisions:
1. Due to special circumstances, where a limited price, specified price or
special price is deemed as the reference basis of the transaction price, this
transaction shall be reported and decided by the Board of Directors for
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approval. If there is any change of the transaction conditions, the
procedures herein above shall apply.

2. If the transaction amount is more than NT$ 1 billion, two or more
professional appraisal institutions must be retained for the appraisal.

3. An accountant’s opinions on the differentiation and appropriateness of the
transaction price is required if any one of the conditions below has occurred,
and the accountant should do so in accordance with the provisions of
Statement of Auditing Standards No. 20 published by the ROC Accounting
Research and Development Foundation (ARDF), unless all the appraisal
results for the assets to be acquired are higher than the transaction amount,
or all the appraisal results for the assets to be disposed of are lower than the
transaction amount:

(1) the difference between the appraisal amount of the appraisal institutions
and transaction amount is 20% of transaction amount or more;

(2) the difference between the appraisal amounts of two or more appraisal
institutions reaches 10% of transaction amount or more.

4. The dates between the appraisal report issued by the professional appraisers
and the contract executed shall be more than three months, however, if the
announced present value of the same period is applicable and is not more
than six months, the original appraisal institution may issue the opinion.

Article 11 Certified Accountant’s Opinions

1. For a public company acquiring or disposing of marketable securities, where
the transaction amount reaches 20% of the Company’s paid-in capital or
exceeds NT$300 million, an accountant shall, prior to the date of occurrence
of the event, be retained for opinions on the reasonableness of the transaction
price. If the accountant needs to use the report of an expert as evidence, the
accountant shall do so in accordance with the provisions of Statement of
Auditing Standards No. 20 published by the ROC Accounting Research and
Development Foundation (ARDF). This requirement does not apply to the
securities which are publicly quoted in an active market or otherwise
provided by the regulations of FSC.
According to FSC letter No. 09600014631 and the exception rule provided in
the first paragraph of Article 10 the regulations Governing the Acquisition
and Disposition of Assets by Public Company. Following times the Company
is to proceed free from the aforementioned accountant checking procedure
for acquiring or disposing securities.
(1) Securities acquired by the initial cash offering.
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(2) Participation in subscription to an issue of securities issued at face value
by an issuing company.

(3) Participation in subscription to securities issued by a 100% owned
subsidiary that is carrying out a cash capital increase.

(4) Securities listed and traded on the Taiwan Stock Exchange or the Taipeli
Exchange or emerging stocks.

(5) Government bonds, or bonds under repurchase or reverse purchase
agreements.

(6) Domestic or foreign funds.

(7) TWSE or TPEX listed stocks acquired or disposed of in accordance with
the TWSE or TPEX rules governing the purchase of listed securities by
reverse auction or rules governing the auction of listed securities.

(8) Securities acquired by seasoned equity offerings.

(9) Purchase funds before their establishments according to Section 1,
Article 11, Securities Investment trust and Consulting Act and FSC letter
0930005349 (issued Nov. 01, 2004).

(10)  Purchase or call domestic privately placed funds, the investing scope
of which is the same as that of publicly placed funds. This requirement
does not apply to the occasion that the investing strategy, except
securities credit trading and open position of securities-related products
IS provided in the trust contract.

2. In acquiring or disposing membership certificate or intangible assets by a
public company, and the transaction amount reaching 20% of the Company’s
paid-in capital or in exceeding NT$300 million, except in transactions with a
government institution, an accountant shall, prior to the date of occurrence of
the event, be retained to express opinions on the reasonableness of the
transaction price, and the accountant shall handle the matter pursuant to
Article 13 of the statements of Financial Accounting Standards No. 20
promulgated by Accounting Research and Development Foundation.

3. If the public company acquired or disposed assets through court auction
procedures, they may replace the appraisal report or accountant opinions with
the certified documents issued by the court.

Article 11-1 The calculation of the transaction amounts referred to in the preceding two
articles shall be done in accordance with Article 6, paragraph 2 herein, and
“within the preceding year” as used herein refers to the year preceding the date
of occurrence of the current transaction. Items for which an appraisal report
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Article 12

from a professional appraiser or an accountant’s opinion has been obtained
need not be counted toward the transaction amount.

Related Party Transactions

When the Company engages in any acquisition or disposition of assets from or
to a related party, in addition to ensuring that the necessary resolutions are
adopted and the reasonableness of the transaction terms is appraised, if the
transaction amount reaches 10 percent or more of the Company’s total assets,
the Company shall also obtain an appraisal report from a professional appraiser
or an accountant’s opinion in compliance with the provisions of the Procedures.
The Company must submit the information provided below to the Board of
Directors for approval, upon first obtaining a consent from the Audit Committee,
before its execution of the purchase or disposition of real estate from related
parties, or acquisition or disposition of assets other than real property from or to
related parties where the transaction amount reaches 20 percent or more of
paid-in capital, 10 percent or more of the Company’s total assets, or NT$300
million or more, except in trading of government bonds or bonds under
repurchase and resale agreements, or subscription or redemption of domestic
money market funds. The Company may not proceed to enter into a transaction
contract or make a payment until receiving approval as discussed herein from
the Board of Directors, including.

1. The reasons, necessity and the anticipated benefit of assets purchase or
disposed of;

2. The reasons for selecting the related persons as the transaction party;

With respect to the acquisition of real property from a related party, relevant
information for evaluating the reasonableness of the anticipated transaction
conditions pursuant to provisions of Articles 13 and 14;

4. Items such as the date and price originally acquired by the related party,
transaction counterparty and its relations between the Company and the
related party;

5. The forecasting chart for cash received in each month for one year in the
future from the anticipated month of contract execution, with an evaluation
of the necessity of the transaction and the reasonableness of the fund usage;

6. An appraisal report from a professional appraiser or an accountant’s opinion
obtained in compliance with this Article.

7. Conditions and other important agreed items of the transaction.

The calculation of the transaction amounts referred to in this Article shall be

made in accordance with Article 6, paragraph 2 herein, and “within the
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Article 13

preceding year” as used herein refers to the year preceding the date of

occurrence of the current transaction. Items that have been approved by the

Audit Committee and the Board of Directors need not be counted toward the

transaction amount.

With respect to the acquisition or disposition of business-use equipment

between the Company and its subsidiaries, and when the transaction is within

the authorized amount, the Chairman of the Board may, pursuant to Article 5,

paragraph 2, subparagraph 3, decide such matters and have the decisions

subsequently submitted to and ratified at the next Board of Directors meeting.

The Company’s purchases of real estate from a related party shall comply with

methods provided below to evaluate the reasonableness of the transaction cost:

1. Based upon the related party’s transaction price plus necessary interest on
funding and the cost to be borne by the buyer according to law. The
“necessary interest on funding” is imputed as the weighted average interest
rate of the fund borrowed by the Company in the year of purchase of the
asset.

2. Total loan value appraised by a financial institution if such object has been
mortgaged to the financial institution for a loan; provided that the actual
cumulative amount loaned by the financial institution for the object shall
reach 70% or more of the appraised total value and the loan period is more
than one year. However, this shall not apply if the financial institution and
either party of the transaction are related persons.

3. Where the land and the buildings on the property are combined for the
purchase, the cost of the transaction may be reached by respectively
evaluating such land and building based on either method described above.

4. The Company’s purchases of real estate from the related party, in addition to
evaluating the cost of the cost of real estate pursuant to provisions prescribed
in the preceding three paragraphs, an accountant shall be retained to check
and provide specific opinion.

5. Where one of the following occurrence exists in the Company’s purchase of
the real estate from the related party, the transaction is exempt from the
application of the preceding four paragraphs; however, the Article 12 shall
still apply:

(1) The related party acquired real estate by inheritance or as a gift.
(2) Between the signing date of the related party’s receipt of the real estate
and the signing date of the current transaction, 5 years has passed.
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(3) Acquiring real estate by a joint construction contract executed with the
related party, or through engaging a related party to build real property,
either on the company’s own land or on rented land.

Article 14  Where the evaluations reached by the Company pursuant to the first to third
paragraphs in preceding Article are consonantly lower than the transaction price,
the provisions of Article 15 apply; however, if any of the circumstances below
exists, accompanied by objective evidence provided by a professional real
property appraiser’s reasonableness opinion obtained and an accountant’s
specific opinion rendered, the restriction shall not apply:

1. Where the related party purchased a piece of undeveloped land or leased
land for construction, and the evidence provided meets one of the following
conditions:

(1) The total value of the undeveloped land, evaluated based on the methods
referred to in the preceding paragraph, and the building, calculated based
on the related party’s construction cost plus reasonable construction
profit, is more than the actual transaction price. The stated “reasonable
construction profit” shall be the average operating gross profit ratio of
the construction department of the related party within the last three
years or the most recent gross profit ratio of the construction industry
published by the Ministry of Finance, whichever is lower.

(2) The transaction of the other floors/levels on the same property of nearby
region consummated within one year by non-related parties, the area
being similar and the transaction conditions being reasonable after
reasonable appraisal of the price difference of floor/level or region in
accordance with real estate sale transaction practice.

(3) In the case of lease of non-related party of the other floors/levels of the
object within one year, the transaction conditions being reasonable after
reasonable appraisal of the price difference of floors/level or region in
accordance with real estate lease transaction practice.

2. The Company provides evidence to prove that the transaction conditions for
purchase of the real estate from the related party correspond with those of
other transactions of non-related parties in the neighborhood and within one
year, with a similar size.

The transaction in the neighborhood in the preceding paragraph shall mean

the transaction of the real estate on the same or nearby street with a distance

of less than 500 meters from the estate in question. The term “similar size”
means that in the case of transaction of non-related party, the size is not less
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than 50% of the estate in question. The “within one year” means dating
back for one year from the date of acquiring this real estate.

Article 15 When the Company acquires real estate from the related party and the
evaluations reached pursuant to the Articles 13 and 14 are consonantly lower
than the transaction price, below items shall be followed:

Article 16

Article 17

1.

Allocate the difference between the real estate transaction price and the
evaluated cost as special reserve.

The independent director members of the Audit Committee handle the
matter pursuant to Article 218 of the Company Act.

Report the handling condition of the first and second items to the
shareholders’ meeting and disclose the detailed transaction content in the
annual report and the prospectus.

Where the Company allocates a special reserve in accordance to the
preceding paragraph, it shall not use such special reserve until and unless a
devaluation loss on the asset purchased at high price has been rendered, or
such asset has been disposed of, or proper compensation had been received,
or the original status has been restored, or has been acquitted of the
unreasonableness by other evidence and has been approved by the
competent authorities.

Transaction of Derivative Products

The Company engages in the transaction of derivative products shall heed to the
control of the following important matters for risk management and auditing
purposes in the Procedures:

1.

Trading principles and policies: shall include the types of derivative product
transactions that can be made, operation or hedge strategies, responsibility
division, main points for evaluating performance, total amount of contracts
which can be engaged in the transaction of derivative products and the upper
limit of loss for all and individual contracts.

Risk management measures.

Internal auditing system.

Method of periodic evaluation and management of abnormal conditions.

Where the Company engages in the transaction of derivative products, it shall

perform the following risk management measures:

1.

The scope of risk management shall include the risk management of credit,
market price, liquidity, cash flows, operation and law.
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2.

5.

Dealing persons, confirming persons and settling persons for the derivative
products transactions shall not be the same.

The persons in charge of the evaluation, supervision and control of
risk-related matters shall respectively belong to the different departments as
those in the preceding item and shall make a report to the Board of Directors
or to the high-level managers who are not responsible for setting policies for
transactions or positions to be engaged.

The positions held in the trading of derivative products shall be evaluated at
least once a week, the hedging transaction made for business purposes shall
be evaluated at least twice a month, and the evaluation reports shall be given
to high-level manages authorized by the Board of Directors.

Other important risk management measures.

Article 18  Principles of Supervision and Management of the Board of Directors

Article 19

1.

2.

Assign high-level managers to oversee the supervision and the control of the
risk of derivative transactions at all times.

Periodically evaluate whether the results of the derivative transactions
conform to the formulated operational policies and whether the attendant
risk of these transactions is within the capability of the Company.

The Principles of Supervision and Control of the High-Level Managers
Authorized by the Board of Directors:

1.

Periodically evaluate whether the risk management measures currently being
used are suitable and whether they conform with this Procedures and the
“Rules and Procedures of Derivative Transactions” formulated by the
Company.

Supervise the transactions and loss-and-profit status, if there are any
abnormal situations, the high-level manager shall report to the Board of
Directors and an independent director shall present on behalf of the Board of
Directors and express opinions.

The Company shall prepare a registry with the type, amount, date passed by the
Board of Directors for the engagement of the transaction of derivative products
and the items shall be carefully evaluated in accordance to the item 4 of the
Articles 17, the item 2 of paragraph 1 and the item 1 of paragraph 2 of Article 18,
and publish in detail in registry.

The Company’s internal auditors shall check the suitability of internal control
of derivative transactions periodically and inspect monthly the compliance of
the trading departments with “Rules and Procedures of Derivative Transactions”
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Article 20

Article 21

Article 22

in order to make the auditing report. If there are any severe breach matters,
these shall be notified to Audit Committee in writing.

Mergers, Splits, Acquisitions and Shares Transference

Prior to convening the Board of Directors for a resolution, the Company
engaging in a merger, split, acquisition or share transference shall retain
accountants, attorneys or securities underwriters for opinions on the
reasonableness of the share conversion rates, acquisition price or the cash or
other assets distributed to shareholders, and submit the opinions at the

shareholders’ meeting for discussion and approval.

Prior to convening the shareholders’ meeting, the Company participating in a
merger, split or acquisition shall prepare a public document addressed to the
shareholders stating the significant stipulations of the merger, split or acquisition
plan and related matters, and deliver it to the shareholders along with the expert
opinions of the preceding Article and the notice of the shareholders’ meeting to
provide the shareholders with a basis of reference for deciding whether to agree
to the merger, split or acquisition plan; however, not including conditions
exempt from convening the shareholders’ meeting for a resolution of matters of
mergers, splits or acquisitions pursuant to other laws.

If the shareholders’ meeting of any Company (including the Company)
participating in the merger, split or acquisition is unable to convene or to pass
such a resolution because of inability to achieve a quorum or sufficient voting
shares or because of other legal restrictions, or the plan is rejected at the
shareholders’ meeting, the Company shall immediately make a public
announcement of the reasons for such occurrence, the follow-up measures to be
taken, and the anticipated date for convening of the shareholders’ meeting(s).

Except as provided by laws or under special circumstances where advance

permission has been obtained from the FSC, the Company shall convene the

board meetings and shareholders’ meetings and pass resolutions regarding the

merger, split or acquisition and relevant matters on the same day along with

other participating companies in the merger, split, acquisition or share

transference.

The Company shall prepare the following information in a written form and

retain the records for 5 years:

1. Basic identification data for personnel, including the occupational titles,
names, and national 1D numbers (or passport numbers in the case of foreign

96



Article 23

Article 24

nationals) of all persons involved in the planning or implementation of any
merger, split, acquisition, or transfer of another company’s shares prior to
disclosure of the information.

2. Dates of material events, including the signing of any letter of intent or
memorandum of understanding, the hiring of a financial or legal advisor, the
execution of a contract, and the convening of a board of directors meeting.

3. Important documents and minutes, including merger, demerger, acquisition,
and share transfer plans, any letter of intent or memorandum of
understanding, material contracts, and minutes of board of directors
meetings.

The Company shall, within two days commencing immediately from the date of

passage of a resolution by the Board of Directors, report (in the prescribed

format and via the Internet-based information system) the information set out in
subparagraphs 1 and 2 of the preceding paragraph to the FSC for recordation.

All persons participating in or knowing of the Company’s merger, split,
acquisition or share transference plan shall submit a written undertaking of
nondisclosure. Prior to public disclosure of the merger, split, acquisition or
share transference information, such persons may not externally divulge any
content of the merger, split, acquisition or share transference plan, nor may they
purchase or sell in their own capacity or in the name of another person any
shares, or any other equity securities of any Company connected with the merger,
split, acquisition or share transference plan.

In the Company’s participating in a merger, split, acquisition or share
transference, the share conversion rates or the acquisition price may not be
arbitrarily changed except under the conditions provided below, and the
conditions for change shall be provided in the merger, split, acquisition or share
transference contract:

1. Cash capital increase, issuance of convertible corporate bonds, distribution
of stock dividends, and issuance of corporate bonds with warrants, preferred
shares with warrants, subscription warrants, and other equity securities.

2. Acts affecting Company finances or operations, such as disposition of major
assets.

3. Occurrence of major disasters, major technological transformations, or other
events affecting Company shareholder equity or Company securities prices.

4. Adjustment of treasury shares duly redeemed by any Company participating
in the merger, split, acquisition or share transference.
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Article 25

Article 26

Article 27

5. Increase, decrease, or change in the entities, or number thereof, participating
in the merger, split, acquisition or share transference.

6. Other conditions for change have been provided in the contract and publicly
disclosed.

In the Company’s participating in a merger, split, acquisition or share
transference, the contract shall specify the rights and obligations of the
companies participating in the merger, split, acquisition or share transference
and shall also specify the following particulars:

1. Handling of breach of agreement.

2. Principles for handling of equity securities already issued by, or treasury
stock already redeemed by, the Company (Companies) extinguished in the
merger of the split Company.

3. The quantity of treasury stock that a participating Company may redeem
after the record date of calculation of the share conversion ratio, and relevant
handling principles.

4. The handling methods of which there is an increase, decrease, or change in
the entities, or number thereof, participating.

5. The scheduled timetable for execution of the plan, and scheduled timeframe
for completion.

6. The relevant procedures for handling failure to complete within such
timeframe, such as the anticipated date for convening of the shareholders’
meeting(s) pursuant to laws.

Following public disclosure of information about the Company’s participating in
merger, split, acquisition or share transference, if the Company has an intention
to undergo a further merger, split, acquisition or share transference with another
Company, any procedures or legal actions already carried out by the Company
under the original merger, split, acquisition or share transference plan shall be
carried out anew except under the conditions that the number of the participating
companies decreases and the companies’ shareholders’ meeting has made a
resolution and authorized the Board of Directors the right for modification, the
Company is exempt from convening the shareholders’ meeting for another
resolution.

If the companies participating in the merger, split, acquisition or share
transference are categorized as non-public companies, the Company shall enter
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Article 28

into an agreement with them in accordance to provisions provided by the
Avrticles 22, 23 and 26.

Other Items

1.

Matters not provided herein shall be governed by the relevant laws and
regulations and the relevant regulations of the Company. If the Procedures
of Acquisition or Disposition of Assets in the original order are amended by
the competent authority, the Company shall apply the provisions in the new
order.

When the Procedures are submitted to the Board of Directors for discussion,
the board shall fully take each independent director’s opinions into
consideration and record each director’s opinions and reasons for the pros
and cons in the minutes.

The Procedures shall be approved by the Audit Committee pursuant to
related regulations, and submitted to the Board of Directors for resolution
and later be effective after approved by the shareholders meeting. If a
director holds dissenting opinions and there were records for it or in written
stating, the Company shall submit materials of the director’s dissenting
opinions to Audit Committee.

The Company’s matters shall be approved by the Board of Directors
pursuant to the Procedures or other laws. If a director holds a dissenting
opinion of the Company’s matters and there were records for them or they
were stated in writing, the Company shall submit evidence of the director’s
dissenting opinions to Audit Committee.

When the Company reports the transaction for the acquisition or disposition
of assets pursuant to the preceding paragraph to the Board of Directors for
discussion, the board shall fully take each independent director’s opinions
into consideration and record each director’s opinions and reasons for the
pros and cons in the minutes.

If the Company plans to engage in assets or the transaction of derivative
products, the plan shall be approved by more than half the members of all
the Audit Committee and submitted to Board of Directors for resolution.

If the above plan that has not been approved by the Audit Committee, the
plan shall be approved by the Board of Directors with two-thirds of all
directors and the resolution of Audit Committee shall be recorded in the
Board of Directors meeting minutes.
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8. The Audit Committee members in paragraph 6 and the Board of Directors
members in preceding paragraph will only calculate the members in present

person.

Article 29  The Procedures were enacted on May 7, 2002.
The 1% amendment was made on June 17, 2003.
The 2" amendment was made on June 21, 2007.
The 3™ amendment was made on June 25, 2008.
The 4™ amendment was made on June 23, 2009.
The 5™ amendment was made on June 18, 2010.
The 6" amendment was made on June 21, 2012.
The 7" amendment was made on June 14, 2013.
The 8" amendment was made on June 11, 2014.
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Appendix 11

Impact of Stock Dividend Issuance on the Company’s Business

Performance, Earnings per Share and

Return on Shareholders’ Investment

Item

Year

2017
(Forecast)

Beginning Paid-in Capital

NT$26,503,164,390

Cash dividend per share ! NT$1.20
Dividend Stogk d|V|der_1d pe(rl)share for capital increase from 0.03 share
N retained earnings
Distribution — —
Stock dividend per share for capital increase from
i (€) 0 share
capital reserve
Operating profit
Year-on-year increase / decrease (%) of operating profit
i Net profit after tax
Business Year-on-year increase / decrease (%) of net profit after 2
Performance N/A®
o tax
Variation -
Earnings per share
Year-on-year increase / decrease of earnings per share
Average return over investment (annualized)
If cash dividend is Pro forma earnings per
distributed instead of capital|share
increase from retained Pro forma average return
earnings over investment
(annualized)
If no capital increase from |Pro forma earnings per
Pro forma earmninas capital reserve share
g Pro forma average return N/A @

per share and its
P/E ratio

over investment
(annualized)

If no capital reserve and
cash dividend is distributed

Pro forma earnings per
share

instead of capital increase
from retained earnings

Pro forma average return
over investment

(annualized)

Note 1: Pending resolution by 2017 Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting.
Note 2: Wistron is not required to disclose its 2017 financial forecast pursuant to “Regulations
Governing the Publication of Financial Forecasts of Public Companies.”
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Appendix 10

Wistron Corporation
Shareholdings of Directors

(As of April 16, 2017)

Title Name Number of Shares
Chairman Simon Lin (Hsien-Ming Lin) 34,578,203
Director Stan Shih (Chen-Jung Shih) 2,723,401
Director Haydn Hsieh (Hong-Po Hsieh) 1,059,502
Director Robert Huang (Po-Tuan Huang) 5,248,261
Independent Director John Hsuan (Min-Chih Hsuan) 0
Independent Director Michael Tsai (Kuo-Chih Tsai) 0
Independent Director James K. F. Wu (Kuo-Feng Wu) 0
Independent Director Duh- Kung Tsali 0
Independent Director ZLC;g;)C'J' Cheng (Chung-Jen 83,770
Total 43,693,137

The common shares of Wistron are 2,650,316,439 shares. Pursuant to Article 2 of the
“Examination and Implementation Rules for Shareholding Percentage of Directors and
Supervisors of Public Offering Companies,” elected independent directors of the Company (5
seats) are more than half of all directors (9 seats), and in accordance with the law regarding
establishment of an audit committee, the shareholding of the supervisors does not need to follow

the minimum holding requirement.
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